
Page 1 of 7 

 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI  

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 

91-5420 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi  

Monday, March 16, 2020 at 9:30 a.m. to be continued, if necessary, on 

Tuesday, March 17, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Note: Commission Meeting Packets will be available at dhhl.hawaii.gov, by Thursday, March 12, 2020. 
 

I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

A. Roll Call 

B. Approval of Agenda 

C. Approval of Minutes February 2020  

D. Approval of Acceptance of January – April 2019 Minutes – (Prior Commissions) 

E. Public Testimony on Agendized Items 

 

II. ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING 
 

A. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Homestead Services Division 
 

D-2  Approval of Consent to Mortgage (see exhibit) 

D-3  Approval of Homestead Application / Cancellations (see exhibit) 

D-4  Approval of Designation of Successors to Leasehold Interest and Designation of 

  Persons to Receive the Net Proceeds (see exhibit) 

D-5  Approval of Assignment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 

D-6  Approval of Amendment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 

D-7  Approval to Issue Non-Exclusive Licenses for Rooftop Photovoltaic Systems for 

  Certain Lessees (see exhibit) 

D-8  Approval for Payment of Net Proceeds – CHRYSTE ANN DOMINGO, Residential 

  Lot Lease No. 7069, Lot No. 8, Kawaihae Residence Lot, Kawaihae, Hawaii 

D-9  Approval of Consolidation and Subdivision, Lease No. 5985, Lot No. 104-A, 

  Waimanalo, Oahu – LIBERTY A.K. HOSE 
 

B. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

 Office of the Chairman 
 

C-1  Resolution No. 303 Recognizing The Centennial Celebration Of The Hawaiian Homes 

Commission Act Of 1920, As Amended 
 

C-2  Approval of Lease Award Leinaala K. Mano, Lanai, Hawaiʻi. 
 

Land Development Division 
 

E-1  Declare a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) for the DHHL Waikupanaha 

Agricultural Lots Final Environmental Assessment, TMK (1) 4-1-008: 002 (por.), 093, 

094, 095 and 096 
 

Administration Services Office 
 

H-1  Transfer of Hawaiian Home Receipts Money at the End Of the Third Quarter, FY 

2020 



Page 2 of 7 

 

III. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 

A. REGULAR AGENDA 

 

Planning Office 

  

G-1 For Information Only - Update on the Implementation Status of Plans in the 

Waimānalo Region 

 

G-2 For Information Only – Community Benefits Agreements Lessons Learned 

  

IV. EXECUTIVE SESSION (discussion to be held during lunch break) 

  
The Commission anticipates convening in executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-

5(a)(4), HRS, to consult with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the 

Commission’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities on these matters:  

 

1.  Kanahele et al. v. State of Hawaiʻi et al., Civ. No. 1CCV-20-000235 before the First 

Circuit Court, State of Hawaiʻi; 

2. Collections process for home loan deficiency balances following lease cancellation;  

3. Discussion on In re: Paniolo Cable Company, LLC, Case No. 18-01319 (RJF) before 

the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, District of Hawaiʻi; and 

4. Panaʻewa Hawaiian Homelands Community Association leadership dispute 
 

V. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 

B. GENERAL AGENDA  
 

Requests to Address the Commission  

 

J-1 Patrick Kahawaiolaa – Keaukaha Community Association 

J-2 Darryl Kaluau – South Point Water  

J-3 Benjamin Rodrigues – Ka Ohana O Kahikinui  

J-4 Bo Kahui – Villages of Laʻi Opua 

J-5 Kekoa Enomoto – Maui-Lanai Mokupuni Council 

 J-6  Homelani Schaedel – Maintenance & Safety Issues in Malu`ohai 

 J-7  Kalani Kamanʻo – Home Equity Line of Credit Loans for Homesteads 

 J-8  Princeslehuanani Kamaewakainakaleomomona – Waitlist 

 J-9  Gil Campbell – Waimanalo Homestead Issue 

    

C. WORKSHOP 
 

Office of the Chairman 

 

C-3  Draft Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant Annual Housing Plan 2020-2021 

 

Land Development Division 

 

E-2  For Information Only - Waimanalo Project Updates 

 



Page 3 of 7 

 

 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 

91-5420 Kapolei Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi  

Tuesday, March 17, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. 

 

I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

A. Roll Call 

B. Public Testimony on Agendized Items 

 

II. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 

A. REGULAR AGENDA 
   

  Homestead Services Division 
 

  D-1     HSD Status Reports 

   A - Homestead Lease and Application Totals and Monthly Activity Reports 

   B – Delinquency Report 

   C – DHHL Guarantees for FHA Construction Loans 

   

  Planning Office 

 

G-3 For Information Only – Hanapēpē, Kauaʻi Homestead Development Plan Draft 

Environmental Assessment 

 

   G-4 For Information Only – Anahola, Kauaʻi Kuleana Settlement Plan and Draft 

Environmental Assessment 

 

    G-5 For Information Only – Puʻu ʻŌpae, Kauaʻi Kuleana Settlement Plan and Draft 

Environmental Assessment 

 

IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADJOURNMENT 
 

A. Next Meeting – April 20 & 21, 2020 – Lanikeha Community Center, Hoʻolehua, Molokaʻi  

B. Adjournment 

 

Note: Contested Case Hearings begin at 1:00 p.m. 

 

 

________________________________ 

William J. Aila Jr., Chairman  

Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 

 Randy K. Awo, Maui     Zachary Z. Helm, Molokaʻi  

 Patricia L. Teruya, Oʻahu      David B. Kaʻapu, West Hawaiʻi 

 Pauline N. Namuʻo, Oʻahu     Dennis L. Neves, Kauaʻi  

 Michael L. Kaleikini, East Hawaiʻi     Russell K. Kaupu, Oʻahu   



Page 4 of 7 

 

 

 

 

Next Community Meeting scheduled for Monday, March 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m. Waimānalo 

Hawaiian Homestead Association Halau – 41-209 Ilauhole St., Waimānalo, HI 96795 

 
Special Accommodations (such as Sign Language Interpreter, large print, taped material) can be provided, if 

requested, at least five (5) working days before the scheduled meeting on the respective island by calling the 

Information & Community Relations Office, on Oahu, (808) 620-9590.  

 



Page 5 of 7 

 

 

ITEM D-2 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT TO MORTGAGE 

   

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

AHSING-KAAHANUI, Jenny 11762 Kanehili, Oahu 

AHUNA, Reydan P. 2032 Kewalo, Oahu 

ALAMEDA, Avonelle L. 8960 Keaukaha, Hawaii 

APANA-MCKEE, Hilary 2023 Kewalo, Oahu 

AQUINO, Crystal 12894 Kanehili, Oahu 

BALACUA, Emma 11862 Kanehili, Oahu 

BARRETT, Ernest 11589 Kanehili, Oahu 

CABRERA, Anthony 11775 Kanehili, Oahu 

CHANG, Frances P. 8476 Princess Kahanu Estates, Oahu 

CRUZ, Sherilyn 12893 Kanehili, Oahu 

FROST, William K. I. 11317 Kekaha, Kauai 

HANSON, Natalie K. 6336 Keaukaha, Hawaii 

JOHNSON, Ezra 12900 Kanehili, Oahu 

KAAHANUI-ROSA, William   12901 Kanehili, Oahu 

KAAUWAI, Joanne M. 11910 Kaupea, Oahu 

KAYATANI, Shannon H. K. 2121 Kewalo, Oahu 

KEAHI, Byron 12238 Waiehu 4, Maui 

KIM, Melvaline K. 12641 Kanehili, Oahu 

KOA, John K., Jr. 11426 Kaupea, Oahu 

KUAMOO, Roland A. 4052A Keaukaha, Hawaii 

LAKE-FARM, Naomi K. 10104 Waiehu 3, Maui 

LOPES, Angela K. 2816 Waimanalo, Oahu 

LUCRISIA, Naleisha P. 12477 Kauluokahai, Oahu 

MANNERS, Lono 11725 Kanehili, Oahu 

MANUIA, Jaysen K. 6272B Panaewa, Hawaii 

MEYER, Zachariah 12891 Kanehili, Oahu 

MOREY, Jordan 12896 Kanehili, Oahu 

NAHINA, Solomon K. 11868 Kanehili, Oahu 

PEDRINA, Tracy-Ann  11235 Kumuhau, Oahu 

PEELUA-VEGAS, Jantseen K. 11700 Kanehili, Oahu 

POHINA, Oliver 12897 Kanehili, Oahu 

RASMUSSEN, Joel 12903 Kanehili, Oahu 

SHEEN, Daniel, Jr. 4943 Nanakuli, Oahu 

STEVENS, Sydney Lee M. 2705B Puukapu, Hawaii 

VICTORINO, Frances Y. I. 8717 Waianae, Oahu 

WONG, Patrick K. 7128 Kawaihae, Hawaii 

WRIGHT, Wayne W. 10418 Waiohuli, Maui 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 7 

 

ITEM D-3 - EXHIBIT 

HOMESTEAD APPLICATION TRANSFERS / CANCELLATIONS 
  

APPLICANT AREA 

BENANUA, Eleanor R. Lanai IW Res 

BENANUA, Pauline K. Lanai IW Res 

BIHO, Karen J.K. Lanai IW Res 

CUMMINGS, Theresa L. Nanakuli Area / Oahu IW Res 

GOUVEIA, Lena L. Oahu IW Res 

HANOG, Laikealohaohaliilehua Lanai IW Res 

KALANI, Elaine K. Hawaii IW Agr 

KALANI, Elaine K. Hawaii IW Res 

KAONOHI, Marques J.M. Oahu IW Res 

PETERS, Angus K. Maui IW Agr 

PLUNKETT, Larry P. Lanai IW Res 

                                    * IW = Islandwide 
 

ITEM D-4 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF DESIGNATION OF SUCCESSORS TO LEASEHOLD INTEREST AND 

DESIGNATION OF PERSONS TO RECEIVE THE NET PROCEEDS 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

BEAMER, Francis K., Jr. 2698Z Puuka 

HOLT, Charles 385 Nanakuli, Oahu 

 
ITEM D-5 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

KAPELIELA, Michael K. 4451 Waianae, Oahu 

MARCIEL, Suzanne L. 7398 Keokea, Maui 

NAVARRO, Luis C., Jr. 11693 Kanehili, Oahu 

PETERSON, Kimberlee K. 260 Nanakuli, Oahu 

CHING, Dylan M.H. 9142 Kahikinui, Maui 

KEOLA, Jujen-Ann K. 2008 Kewalo, Oahu 

 

ITEM D-6 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

AKANA, George K. 3811 Kekaha, Kauai 

 

 

 

BEAMER, Francis K., Jr. 2698Z Puukapu, Hawaii 

CHUNG, Faith K. 2516 Kewalo, Oahu 

HOLT, Charles 385 Nanakuli, Oahu 

KUAHIWINUI, Haralan Louise L. 3349 Anahola, Kauai 

FITISEMANU, Yvonne L. 3349 Anahola, Kauai 

LICAYAN, Emily P.N. 3631 Kekaha, Kauai 

LOPES, Angela K. 2816 Waimanalo, Oahu 

SALAUSA, Crystal M. 8598 Nanakuli, Oahu 



Page 7 of 7 

 

CHAI, Buffee W. 8598 Nanakuli, Oahu 

 
ITEM D-7 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL TO ISSUE A NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE FOR ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC 

SYSTEMS FOR CERTAIN LESSEES 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

AHUE, Kent M. 8784 Waimanalo, Oahu 

ARAGON, Julian M., III 8335 PKE, Oahu 

HINA, Lamar K. 11812 Kanehili, Oahu 
 

 

 

 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 303 

 

 

RECOGNIZING THE CENTENNIAL CELEBRATION OF THE HAWAIIAN 

HOMES COMMISSION ACT OF 1920, AS AMENDED 

 

 

WHEREAS, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole became a member of the 

Republican Party in 1902; and,  

WHEREAS, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole, was Hawaii’s delegate to the 

United States Congress from his election in 1902 until his untimely passing on 

January 7, 1922; and, 

WHEREAS, Prince Kuhio re-established the Ahahui Kamehameha in 1903, 

an organization of native Hawaiian men of royal lineage; and,  

WHEREAS, Prince Kuhio established the county districts on each island 

under the Territory of Hawaii; and, 

WHEREAS, Prince Kuhio was ever-concerned about his beloved people 

living in tenements in downtown Honolulu.  As a result, he called together 200 of 

his closest men and created Ahahui Puuhonua o Na Hawaii in 1911 to document 

and address the poor living conditions; 

WHEREAS, the Territorial Legislature passed the Hawaiian Homes 

Commission Act and Prince Kuhio introduced it into the United States Congress; 

and,  



 
 
 
 
 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, In April 1920, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole introduced 

House Resolution (HR) 13500, the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, for passage 

by the United States Congress for the betterment of his beloved Hawaiian people; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Senate Committee on Territories was a bi-partisan mix 

of the following senators:  Harry S. New (IN), Chairman; George P. McLean (CT); 

Key Pittman (NV); Wesley L. Jones (WA); Robert L. Owen (OK); Warren G. 

Harding (OH); James D. Phelan, (CA); Frederick Hale (ME); John F. Nugent (ID); 

William E. Borah (ID); George E. Chamberlain (OR); and, Reed Smoot (UT); and 

met the last time on December 24, 1920 to pass the HB 13500 out of committee; 

and,   

WHEREAS, the US House Committee on Territories was comprised of a 

bipartisan mix of the following members: Charles F. Curry (CA); Albert Johnson 

(WA); Zebulon Weaver (NC); Cassius C. Dowell (IA); William C. Lankford (GA); 

Louis T. McFadden (PA); Edward B. Almon (AL); Edward S. Brooks (PA); James 

G. Strong (KS); Patrick H. Drewery (VA); Joseph McLaughlin, (PA); John E. 

Rankin (MS); Allen F. Moore (IL); William J. Driver (AR); Charles L. Knight 

(OH); Albert B. Rossdale (NY); George P. Codd (MI);  J. Kuhio Kalanianaole 

(HI); and, Dan A. Sutherland (AK); and met the last time on June 11, 1921 to 

report out of committee HR 7257, instead of HR 6207 and HR 6210; and, 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1881 passed by voice vote by the U.S. Senate on 

June 27, 1921 and the U.S. House of Representatives on June 30, 1921; and,  

WHEREAS, the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act was signed on July 9, 

1921 by U.S. President Warren G. Harding and fully operative on September 16, 

1921; and, 

WHEREAS, the Hawaiian Homes Commission held one hundred 

twenty-one regular meetings and nine Special Meetings of the Commission from 

September 21, 1921, thru June 30, 1924; and, 

WHEREAS, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole, as a delegate to the United 

States Congress, was not a voting member of that body; and, 



 
 
 
 
 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole “...made a notable record and 

his voice was listened to with respect by his many staunch friends among the 

national leaders;” and, 

WHEREAS, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole was “royal by nature as well 

as by blood;” and, 

WHEREAS, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole was a “true friend of the 

people” and that the “adoption of the Hawaiian Homes Act will ever stand as a 

monument to his memory;”   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the undersigned, duly 

recognized as the chairman and members of the Hawaiian Homes Commission, on 

this 16th day of March 2020, do set forth their hand to recognize the Centennial 

Celebration of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as amended, to 

commence on July 9, 2021 thru June 8, 2022 and to authorize the Department of 

Hawaiian Homes Lands, as the organizer for the Commission’s Centennial, to 

work with Hawaiian Home Lands’ beneficiaries; community members; and elected 

officials, to participate in existing statewide events; and to include 

documentary/video production; haku mele; printed histories; and other such 

activities that meet the spirit of ‘Ke Alii Makaainana – The People’s Prince;” and,  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this Resolution be transmitted 

in its entirety to Hawaii’s delegation to the U.S. Congress:  Senator Brian Schatz; 

Senator Mazie Hirono, Congresswoman Tulsi Gabbard, and Congressman Ed 

Case; Alaska’s delegation to the U.S. Congress:  Senator Lisa Murkowski, Senator 

Dan Sullivan, and Congressman Don Young; Jonathan Nez, President, Navajo 

Nation; David Y. Ige, Governor, State of Hawaii; Ron Kouchi, President of the 

Hawaii Senate; Scott Saiki, Speaker of Hawaii’s House of Representatives; the 

Mayors of Hawaii, Maui, Oahu and Kauai counties; Sir Alika Desha, Alii Nui of 

the Royal Order of Kamehameha I; Coline Aiu, Kuhina Nui of Ahahui o na 

Mamakakaua; Waikululani Cockett, Iku Hai Nui of Ahahui Hale O Na Alii O 

Hawaii; Pauline Namuo, Pelekikena of Ahahui Kaahumanu; Hailama Farden, 

President of the Association of Hawaiian Civic Clubs; and all the leaders of the 

Hawaiian Homestead Associations. 



 
 
 
 
 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 
 

 

 

ADOPTED THIS 16th day of March 2020, at Hale Ponoi, Kapolei, Hawaii, 

by the Hawaiian Homes Commission in Regular Meeting assembled. 

 

OFFERED BY: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

William J. Aila, Jr., Chairman 

 

 

  

David Kaapu, Member 

 

 

  

Pauline Namuo, Member 

 

 

  

Dennis Neves, Member 

 

 

  

Russell Kaupu, Member 

  

Randy Kalei Awo, Member 

 

 

  

Zachary Helm, Member 

 

 

     

Patty Kahanamoku-Teruya, Member 

 

 

  

Michael Kaleikini, Member 

 



 

 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

March 16, 2020 

 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

THROUGH:   Paula Aila, Finance and Development Specialist  

 

FROM:  Jo-Anne Aiwohi, Homestead Housing Specialist IV 

SUBJECT:   Approval of Lease Award  

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 

Approve the award of Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Residence Lot Leases to the 

applicants listed below for ninety-nine (99) years 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Lana’i Residential Vacant Lots, Lana’i, Hawaii 

NAME                             APPL DATE      LOT NO       TAX MAP KEY                   LEASE NO 

Leinaala K. Mano      06/27/2005             1202           2-4-9-024:032       12917 

            

 

ITEM C-2 





Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG)    Exempt from OMB Approval. 5 CFR 1320.3 (c) (4) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                    

NHHP/APR     Office of Public and Indian Housing       

      Office of Native American Programs 

    
        

 
 Page   1 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

For DHHL’s Use: July 1, 2020 thru June 30, 2021 Annual Housing Plan 

 

NATIVE HAWAIIAN HOUSING PLAN 
(NAHASDA §§ 803(b)(1), 803(c)(1) and 820(a)(2))  

 
This form meets the requirements for a Native Hawaiian Housing Plan (NHHP) and Annual Performance Report (APR) 
required by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.  The information requested does not 
lend itself to confidentiality.   
 
Regulatory and statutory citations are provided throughout this form as applicable.  The Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands (DHHL) is encouraged to review these citations when completing the NHHP and APR sections of the form.    
              
Under Title VIII of the Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act of 1996 (NAHASDA) (25 
U.S.C. 4101 et seq.), HUD will provide grants under the Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG) program to 
DHHL to carry out affordable housing activities for Native Hawaiian families who are eligible to reside on the Hawaiian 
Home Lands.  To be eligible for the grants, DHHL must submit a NHHP that meets the requirements of the Act.  To 
align the NHHBG program with recent improvements made to the Indian Housing Block Grant program, HUD is 
requiring DHHL to submit the NHHP to HUD at least 75 days prior to the start of its 12-month fiscal year.  The APR is 
due no later than 60 days after the end of DHHL’s fiscal year (24 CFR § 1006.410).   
 
The NHHP and the APR (previously two separate forms) are now combined into one form.  The sections pertaining to 
the NHHP are submitted before the beginning of the 12-month fiscal year, leaving the APR (shaded) sections blank.  If 
the NHHP has been updated or amended, use the most recent version when preparing the APR.  After the 12-month 
fiscal year, enter the results from the 12-month fiscal year in the shaded sections of the form to complete the APR.  
More details on how to complete the NHHP and APR sections of the form can be found in the body of this form.  In 
addition, DHHL may find it helpful to refer to the IHP/APR form guidance available at 
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/public_indian_housing/ih/codetalk/nahasda/guidance until a 
guidance specific to the NHHP/APR form is made available. 
     
FORM COMPLETION OPTIONS:  The NHHP/APR form may be completed either in hard copy or electronically.  Hard 
copy versions may be completed either by hand or typewriter.  Alternatively, the form may be completed electronically 
as it is a Word document.  It is recommended that the form be completed electronically because it is more efficient to 
complete, submit, and review the form.  Furthermore, electronic versions of the form may be submitted to HUD as an 
email attachment.  To document official signatures on the electronic version, you should sign a hard copy of the pages 
and either fax (808-457-4694) that signed page or email (claudine.c.allen@hud.gov) it as an attachment to the Office 
of Native American Programs – Attention:  Claudine Allen in the HUD Honolulu Field Office.  The sections of the NHHP 
that require an official signature are the Cover Page and Sections 13 and 14, if applicable.  For the APR, the Cover 
Page requires an official signature.   

 
The NHHP data is used to verify that planned activities are eligible, expenditures are reasonable, and DHHL certifies 
compliance with related requirements.  The APR data is used to audit the program accurately and monitor DHHL’s 
progress in completing approved activities, including reported expenditures, outputs, and outcomes. This form is 
exempt from OMB Approval pursuant to 5 CFR 1320.3(4)(c).  

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/public_indian_housing/ih/codetalk/nahasda/guidance
mailto:claudine.c.allen@hud.gov


Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG)    Exempt from OMB Approval. 5 CFR 1320.3 (c) (4) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                    

NHHP/APR     Office of Public and Indian Housing       

      Office of Native American Programs 

    
        

 
 Page   2 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SECTION           PAGE NUMBER 

  

COVER PAGE ................................................................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 1:  FIVE YEAR PLAN ..................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2: HOUSING NEEDS .................................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 3: PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS ................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 4: AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES  .............................................................................. 30 

SECTION 5: BUDGETS .................................................................................................................................. 36 

SECTION 6:  OTHER SUBMISSION ITEMS ................................................................................................ 39 

SECTION 7:  NATIVE HAWAIIAN HOUSING PLAN CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE ................ 41 

SECTION 8:  SELF-MONITORING ............................................................................................................... 42 

SECTION 9:  INSPECTIONS .......................................................................................................................... 43 

SECTION 10:  AUDITS .................................................................................................................................. 44 

SECTION 11: PUBLIC AVAILABILITY ...................................................................................................... 45 

SECTION 12:  JOBS SUPPORTED BY NAHASDA ..................................................................................... 46 

SECTION 13: NHHP WAIVER REQUESTS ................................................................................................. 47 

SECTION 14: NHHP AMENDMENTS .......................................................................................................... 48 

 

Note:  The page numbers in the Table of Contents can update automatically as the NHHP or APR 
is completed.  To update the page numbers, right-click anywhere in the table, select “Update Field” 
and select “update page numbers only.” 



Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG)    Exempt from OMB Approval. 5 CFR 1320.3 (c) (4) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                    

NHHP/APR     Office of Public and Indian Housing       

      Office of Native American Programs 

    
        

 
 Page   3 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

COVER PAGE 
 
     

(1) Grant Number: 14HGBHI0001; 15HBGHI0001; 17HBGHI0001; 18HBGHI0001; 19HBGHI0001 
 

(2) Recipient Fiscal Year: 2020 
 

(3) Federal Fiscal Year: 2021 
 

(4)   Initial Plan (Complete this Cover Page then proceed to Section 1)     

  

(5)   Amended Plan (Complete this Cover Page and Section 14)  

            

(6)   Annual Performance Report (Complete items 24-27 and proceed to Section 3) 

  
 

(7) Name of Recipient:              Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 
 

(8) Contact Person:     Niniau Simmons, NAHASDA Manager 
 
 

(9) Telephone Number with Area Code: 808-620-9513 
 
 

(10) Mailing Address: PO Box 1879 
 
 
 

(11) City: Honolulu 

 

(12) State: HI 

 
(13) Zip Code: 96805 

(14) Fax Number with Area Code (if available): 808-620-9529 
 
 

(15) Email Address (if available):    Niniau.Simmons@hawaii.gov 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 Page   4 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

(16) Tax Identification Number: 99-0266483 

(17) DUNS Number: 809935661 
 

(18) CCR/SAM Expiration Date: 03/17/20 
 

(19) NHHBG Annual Grant Amount:      $2,000,000 
 

(20) Name of Authorized NHHP Submitter:    William J. Aila, Jr. 
 

(21) Title of Authorized NHHP Submitter:       Chairman, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 

(22) Signature of Authorized NHHP Submitter:  
 

(23) NHHP Submission Date:    
 

(24) Name of Authorized APR Submitter:       
 

(25) Title of Authorized APR Submitter:       
 

(26) Signature of Authorized APR Submitter:       
 

(27) APR Submission Date:       
 

 
 
 

Certification: The information contained in this document is accurate and reflects the activities actually planned or 
accomplished during the program year.  Activities planned and accomplished are eligible under applicable statutes and 
regulations. 
 
Warning: If you knowingly make a false statement on this form, you may be subject to civil or criminal penalties under 
18 U.S.C 1001.  In addition, any person who knowingly and materially violates any required disclosure of information, 
including intentional disclosure, is subject to a civil money penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each violation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 Page   5 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

SECTION 1:  FIVE YEAR PLAN 
 
The Five Year Plan is intended to cover the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands’ (DHHL) long range plans for 
affordable housing.  Each housing plan must contain, for the five-year period beginning with the fiscal year for which 
the plan is first submitted, the following information. 
 
Five Year Period: 2020  through       2025    
 

MISSION STATEMENT (NAHASDA § 803(b)(2)(A)) 
 
A Mission Statement describes the mission of the DHHL to serve the needs of Native Hawaiian low-income families. 
 

Enter the DHHL’s Mission Statement here:  

 

To manage the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust effectively and to develop and deliver land to native Hawaiians. 
 
 

 

GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES (NAHASDA § 803(b)(2)(B) and (C)) 
 
DHHL must provide a statement of the goals, objectives, and programs/activities planned for the beneficiaries over the 
five year period.  The goals are the intended result of the NHHBG activity and are based on the types of outcomes that 
the DHHL will report in the APR.  The objectives are the means or approach that the DHHL will use to reach the goal.  
The programs/activities are the specific programs/activities that will be funded in order to achieve the goal and the 
objective. 
 
Goals May Include: 
(1) Reduce over-crowding   (6) Assist affordable housing for college students 
(2) Assist renters to become homeowners   (7) Provide accessibility for disabled/elderly persons 
(3) Improve quality of substandard units   (8) Improve energy efficiency 
(4) Address homelessness   (9) Reduction in crime reports 
(5) Create new affordable rental units (10) Other 

 
Objectives May Include: 
  (1) [RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS NUMBER] (14) Lending subsidies for homebuyers 
  (2) [RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS NUMBER] (15) Other homebuyer assistance activities 
  (3) Acquisition of rental housing (16) Rehabilitation assistance to existing homeowners 
  (4) Construction of rental housing (17) Tenant based rental assistance 
  (5) Rehabilitation of rental housing (18) Other Housing Service 
  (6) Acquisition of land for rental housing development (19) Housing Management Services 
  (7) Development of emergency shelters (20) Operation and maintenance of NHHBG units 
  (8) Conversion of other structures to affordable housing (21) Crime Prevention and Safety 
  (9) Other rental housing development 
(10) Acquisition of land for homebuyer unit development 

(22) Model Activities 
(23) [RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS NUMBER] 

(11) New construction of homebuyer units (24) Infrastructure to support housing 
(12) Acquisition of homebuyer units (25) [RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS NUMBER] 
(13) Downpayment/Closing cost assistance  

 
  



 
 Page   6 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

 
Use the sections below to describe the DHHL’s goals, objectives, and programs/activities during the five year period. 
 

Goal(s) 
Number: I  

(2) Assist renters to become homeowners  

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: Ia. 

 
(24) Infrastructure to support housing 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description: 
Infrastructure 

Development 

(Statewide) 

To develop lots statewide. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: II  

  (2) Assist renters to become homeowners  

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: IIa. 

(11) New construction of homebuyer units; (14) Lending subsidies for homebuyers; 
(13) Downpayment/Closing cost assistance  

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Homeowner Financing 

(Statewide) 

To provide NHHBG-funded home loans (including down payment assistance, 

individual development accounts) to lessee families participating in new 

construction.  This activity also provides for down payment/closing cost assistance 

where NHHBG funds are not the primary loan source. 

 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: III 

(2) Assist renters to become homeowners  

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: IIIa. 

(8) Conversion of other structures to affordable housing  

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Housing Conversion  

This activity supports the exploration of converting existing land and structures to 

affordable housing whose general lease or license may soon expire and revert back 

to the department. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

  



 
 Page   7 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

Goal(s) 
Number: IV. 

(5) Create new affordable rental units  

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: IVa. 

(4) Construction of rental housing  

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Developer Financing 

 

This activity will provide NAHASDA funding for the development of urban 

rentals. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

 
 

Goal(s) 
Number: V.  

(5) Create new affordable rental units 

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: Va. 

(4) Construction of rental housing 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Kupuna Housing 

Development 

 

This activity will support the development of elderly housing for the aging native 

Hawaiian population.  Sites may include the departments land at Isenberg and East 

Kapolei II. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 
 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: VI.  

(7) Provide accessibility for disabled/elderly persons 

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: VIa. 

(16) Rehabilitation assistance to existing homeowners 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Home Assistance 

Program (Statewide) 

 

 

This activity provides three types of assistance:  (1) a deferred, no payment loan up 

to $100,000; (2) a small repayment loan (up to $50,000) for costs exceeding the 

original $100,000 amount; and (3) a demolition/new build loan for properties who 

cost to repair exceed the appraised or tax assessed value. 

 

40 families identified for this program are located in: Kalamaula/Hoolehua, 

Molokai; Keaukaha-Panaewa, Hawaii; Nanakuli/Waianae/Waimanalo/Papakolea, 

Oahu. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 



 
 Page   8 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

 
 

Goal(s) 
Number: VII.  

(1) Reduce over-crowding; (5) Create new affordable rental units; (2) Assist renters to 
become homeowners 

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: VIIa. 

(10) Acquisition of land for homebuyer unit development; (6) Acquisition of land for 
rental housing development;  

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Land Acquisition 

(Oahu – Priority) 

 

This activity will support land purchase(s) for home development. 

 
Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 
 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: VIII.  

(1) Reduce over-crowding 

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: VIIIa. 

(18) Other Housing Service 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Alternative Housing 

Design 

 

This activity will support the design of alternative housing models, to include 

multi-family; multi-lease; and culturally-relevant housing models. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 
 
 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: IX.  

(8) Improve energy efficiency 

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: IXa. 

(16) Rehabilitation assistance to existing homeowners 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Energy Retrofits 

 

This program reduces the high cost of energy in the State by installing solar panels 

or photovoltaic panels on lessee homes thru the use of new construction loans. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

 
 



 
 Page   9 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: X.  

(3) Improve quality of substandard units 

Select from the goals listed above. 
 

Objective(s) 
Number: Xa. 

 
(19) Housing Management Services 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
Waimanalo Kupuna 

Housing Operating 

Subsidy 

 

This activity establishes an Operating Subsidy for the Waimanalo Kupuna Housing 

from 2019 – 2046.  Built in 2002 utilizing Low Income Housing Tax Credits, the 

operating subsidy will assist in stabilizing rental increases over the remainder of the 

project’s LIHTC existence.  The use of NHHBG funds in the project will result in 

tenant’s maximum contribution not exceeding 30% of their gross monthly income. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

 

Goal(s) 
Number: XI.  

(4) Address homelessness 

 
Select from the goals listed above. 

 

Objective(s) 
Number: XIa. 

 
(17) Tenant based rental assistance 

Select from the objectives listed above. 
 

Program/Activity 
Description:  
 

Rental Vouchers 

This activity establishes the use of rental housing vouchers for eligible applicant 

beneficiaries.  Provides financial assistance to families facing eviction, 

experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness. 

Describe the planned program/activity and indicate how it will enable DHHL to meet its mission, goals, 
and objectives. 

 
  



 
 Page   10 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

ONE YEAR PLAN & ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

SECTION 2: HOUSING NEEDS  

(NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(B))        
            

(1) Type of Need: Check the appropriate box(es) below to describe the estimated types of housing needs and the 
need for other assistance for low-income Native Hawaiian families (columns B and C) and non-low-income Native 
Hawaiian families, including non-Native Hawaiian essential families [809(a)(2)(B) and (C)] (column D) eligible to be 
served by DHHL.   

 

(A)  
 

Type of Need 
 

Check All That Apply 

(B) 
 

Low-Income Native 
Hawaiian Families on 
Hawaiian Home Lands 

(C) 
 

Low-Income Native 
Hawaiian Families 

on Wait List 

(D) 
 

Non-Low-
Income Native 

Hawaiian 
Families 

(1) Overcrowded Households      

(2) Renters Who Wish to Become Owners     

(3) Substandard Units Needing Rehabilitation    

(4) Homeless Households       

(5) Households Needing Affordable Rental Units    

(6) College Student Housing      

(7) Disabled Households Needing Accessibility    

(8) Units Needing Energy Efficiency Upgrades    

(9) Infrastructure to Support Housing    

(10) Other (specify below)    

    
 
 

(2) Other Needs. (Describe the “Other” needs below.  Note: this text is optional for all needs 
except “Other.”):  

 
 
The Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as amended, established the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust 

and defined the population eligible to reside on Hawaiian home lands as those native Hawaiians with  no 

less than 50% Hawaiian blood and their successors or assignees of less than 50% Hawaiian blood.  With 

approximately 8,411 leases on homesteads stretching from Hawaii Island to Kauai, the Department of 

Hawaiian Home Lands was created at statehood to assist the commission in meeting its fiduciary 

obligations. 

 
 



 
 Page   11 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

In 2019, Hawaii Housing Finance & Development Corporation contracted with SMS Research & 

Marketing Services, Inc. (SMS) to release Hawaii Housing Planning Study. 

 

The native Hawaiian subset for the purpose of this plan is determined as follows: 

 

8,411 Lessees residing on the DHHL lands — as of November 30, 20191 

23,084 Unduplicated waitlist as of November 30, 20192 

21,399 Estimated Potential Applicants based on SMS 2019 respondents3 

52,894 Total native Hawaiian individuals/households 

 

By applying the SMS 2014 Beneficiary/Applicant Study and the SMS 2019 Study percentage estimates, 

we anticipate the following NAHASDA eligible native Hawaiian households as follows: 

 

  4,542  Lessees residing on the DHHL Lands – 8,411 x 54% 

10,387  Applicants – 23,084 x 45% (to determine 80% AMI) 

12,197  Potential Applicants – 21,399 (SMS 2019 Study) x 57%  

27,126  Total native Hawaiian households eligible for NAHASDA 

 

If we extrapolate and say that the average DHHL turnkey home is $350,000, then the sufficient funding 

amount for NAHASDA would look like this: 

 

10,387 Applicants – 26,926 x 45% 

12,197 Potential Applicants – 21,399 (SMS 2019 Study) x 57% 

 22,584    x     $350,000     =   $7,904,400.00 sufficient funding for NAHASDA 

 
The SMS 2019 Study also indicated that of the 50,156 housing units needed to accommodate Hawaii’s 

households between 2020 and 2025, approximately 14,407 will be needed by Native Hawaiian 

households.  Fifty-seven percent (57%) of the 14,407 units would be needed to accommodate Native 

Hawaiian households that earned 80 percent or less of the HUD AMI (8,1423 units).  Since the SMS 

2019 Study noted that among Native Hawaiian households, 20 percent had at least one member on the 

waitlist, an estimated 1,628 units (8,142 units x 20%) would be needed to accommodate Native 

Hawaiian households that earned 80 percent or less of the HUD AMI who had at least one member on 

the waitlist between 2020 and 2025.  On an annual basis, this demand could be estimated at 325 units. 

 

Additional Research -  2017 HUD Report 

 

Some of the key findings of the Housing Needs of Native Hawaiians: A Report From the Assessment of 

American Indian, Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian Housing Needs prepared for HUD and dated 

May 2017 include the following: 

 

• Native Hawaiian households tend to be larger.  In 2010, the average size of a Native Hawaiian’s 

household was 4.1 people compared with 2.7 people for residents of Hawaii households. 

 
1 Homestead Services Division, 12/16/19 Commission submittal.  Includes lessees residing on residential, agricultural and pastoral 

lots, one lessee per lease, one house per lease/lot, as applicable.  817 Undivided Interest lessees omitted. 

2 Ibid. 

3 The SMS 2019 Housing Policy Study included a category for native Hawaiians with at least 50% blood quantum and not DHHL 

lessees or applicants. 



 
 Page   12 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

 

• Although improvements were made during the 2000-to-2010 decade, Native Hawaiians living in 

Hawaii continue to be more economically disadvantaged: they have lower incomes, higher rates 

of assistance receipt, and higher poverty rates than do other residents of Hawaii. 

 

• Native Hawaiian households also experience higher rates of overcrowding (15 percent) 

compared with residents of Hawaii households (8 percent). 

 

• Homelessness among Native Hawaiians is prevalent.  Although not typically chronically 

homeless, they are overrepresented in Hawaii’s homeless population.  Homeless Native 

Hawaiians often have jobs but cannot afford housing, so they double up (hidden homeless) or 

live in tents, shelters, cars, or garages. 

 

• HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list are more economically disadvantaged than are 

Native Hawaiian households overall, residents of Hawaii households, and Native Hawaiian 

households living on the home lands. 

o HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list have the lowest median income of all 

four groups by a substantial margin: $48,000 compared with more than $60,000 for all 

other groups. 

o HHCA beneficiaries on the waiting list also receive public cash assistance at more than 

twice the rate of the other groups: about 20 percent of households on the waiting list 

received public cash assistance compared with about 7 percent of Native Hawaiians and 

those living on the home lands and 3 percent for residents of Hawaii. 

 

• HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list face more significant housing challenges 

across all dimensions than do the other groups. 

o Nearly 40 percent of HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list were 

overcrowded compared with only 19 percent of households on sampled Hawaiian home 

lands, 15 percent of the state’s Native Hawaiian households, and 8 percent of resident of 

Hawaii households. 

o About 10 percent of HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list lack complete 

plumbing compared with 1 percent for all other groups. 

o Nearly one-half (46 percent) of HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list 

experience cost burden compared with 40 percent of Native Hawaiian households, 42 

percent of resident of Hawaii households, and only 21 percent of households on the 

sampled Hawaiian home lands.  The much lower rate of cost burden among home lands 

households is due, at least in part, to the financial benefits of home lands leases, which 

reduce monthly housing costs, including minimal lease payments for the land and a 7-

year exemption from real estate property tax. 

 

Native Hawaiian Rehabilitation 

The statistics shared in preceding paragraphs are not new to the native Hawaiians.  Over 100 years ago, 

moved by the poor living conditions and low incomes of his people, Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole 

created the Ahahui Puuhonua o Na Hawaii, an organization comprised of royal men of lesser rank than 

himself who collectively served as the catalyst toward the chronicling of the despair and destitution of 

the makaainana (commoner) in 1911.   

 



 
 Page   13 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

By 1918, one of the Prince’s closest confidants and the kahu (pastor) of Kawaiahao Church, put the 

results of many years of study in publishing, “The Sinews for Racial Development.”4 This book, which 

the Prince carried with him every day, was dedicated, “…for leaders, for those whose hearts are touched 

by the pressing needs of the race and are willing to offer the very best of their lives and service freely 

for its uplift.” 

 

The book provides a guide to the rehabilitation of the native Hawaiian people from the perspective of 

those who developed and championed the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act.  It covers the following 

areas and seeks to offer counsel to any whose direction may not be clear: 

 

1. Race Consciousness:  to mean pride for, and faith in the race.  That “Hawaiians must play the 

primary part in the solution” and that self-respect for oneself and others was a “true foundation for a 

successive progression in life.” 

 

2. Broadmindedness:  to maintain a broad outlook on life and “a sympathetic attitude toward humanity 

as a whole.”  It encourages natives to “Give out to those about us, and to the community in which we 

live, the very best that we possess” and to “cultivate the ability to observe, to absorb, and to 

assimilate the good in other races.” 

 

3. Education:  both 1 and 2 above need the “discerning power and the balanced judgment of proper 

education.”  He describes a “Thoroughly trained mind, and a broadly cultivated hear are luminous in 

the soul of a nation.”  

 

4. The Home Life: the home life is the foundation of the development of 1, 2 and 3.  It is the “starting 

point of all social organization, the foundation of civilization.” 

 

5. Systematic Living: the execution of the afore-mentioned activities cannot be achieved at once or in 

burst of energy but rather cultivated over time in a systematic fashion. Regular, good habits such as 

mindful eating and exercise can help to develop the fortitude to continue no matter the circumstance. 

 

6. Godliness: the thought of ke Akua; the worship and observance of His laws provides a stabilizing 

relationship that leads to one’s fulfillment of one’s purpose in life. Today, with the many religious 

beliefs, spirituality is important to the self-fulfillment each experience in his/her own life. 

 

The work of the Ahahui Puuhonua o Na Hawaii and its members provided Prince Kuhio the much-

needed data to create support, both at home in Hawaii and abroad in Washington, D.C. to pass the 

Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as amended.   

 

Through the Prince’s leadership and participation in each of these community endeavors, the legacy of 

the Prince lives on for us today.  This housing plan, a descendant of Kuhio’s legacy thru the HHCA, is 

but a small piece of a much broader articulation of need in the State of Hawaii today.  By focusing on 

housing, this most basic of needs acknowledged in the Western world by Maslow, the department 

attempts to participate in the rehabilitation of the Hawaiian people.  Should every Hawaiian have a safe, 

affordable, decent home, with fresh water for bathing and eating and cooking and food grown or 

gathered nearby, we could claim success.  But with a little under $8 billion in need and as the average 

 
4 Akana, Akaiko. (1992) Light Upon the Midst. Mahina Productions: Kailua-Kona, Hawaii. 



 
 Page   14 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

57-year-old applicant dies on the waiting list, it does not seem likely we will be able to make such a 

claim without immediate and swift monetary assistance in the next few years. 

 

         
    
 
  
   
   

(3) Planned Program Benefits. (Describe below how your planned programs and activities will address the 
needs of low income families identified above.  Also describe how your planned programs will address 
the various types of housing assistance needs.  NAHASDA  § 803(c)(2)(B)):    

 

DHHL is in the process of awarding 395 lots statewide and has over 1,300 lots in its production 

pipeline that are anticipated to be completed over the next five years.  The planned programs and 

activities are aimed at assisting as many native Hawaiian households that earn 80 percent or less of 

the HUD AMI to realize homeownership as part of the ongoing lot awards and production given the 

estimated 325 units needed per year for the next five years to accommodate Native Hawaiian 

households that earned 80 percent or less of the HUD AMI who had at least one member on the 

waitlist.  The 2017 HUD Report noted that “many renters (63 percent) on the HHCA beneficiary 

waiting list who would prefer to own a home are unable to do so because they cannot afford a 

downpayment or save enough for a house.”.  Thus, focus will be on homeowner financing, 

leveraged loans with USDA Rural Housing, or other downpayment assistance options to provide 

new awardees with the opportunity for safe, affordable and decent housing.  This effort will be 

supported by credit counseling and homebuyer education funded by the department.   

 

The 2017 HUD Report also noted that “a complementary approach might be to support affordable 

rental options as a stepping stone to homeownership.”  The planned rental housing voucher is aimed 

at providing rent for families at risk of homelessness, overcrowding, or without shelter. 

 

While the 2017 HUD Report noted that HHCA beneficiary households on the waiting list face more 

significant housing challenges across all dimensions than do the other groups, lessees, especially in 

our older homestead communities face aging substandard housing.  The planned home assistance 

program is geared to addressing this need. 

 
 

 
   

 
(4) Geographic Distribution. (Describe below how the assistance will be distributed throughout the 

geographic area and how this geographic distribution is consistent with the needs of low income 
families, including the needs for various categories of housing assistance.  NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(B)(i)):   
 

In early 2013, the Department confirmed the Hawaiian Homes Commission’s commitment in the 

$75 million NAHASDA spend down to addressing new housing opportunities for home ownership.  

Since the need for housing was statewide, a priority had to be developed that beneficiaries and 

lessees could readily understand and accept.  It was determined that prioritizing based on the 



 
 Page   15 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

homestead mookuauhau would serve as the best methodology in prioritizing NAHASDA funding 

and the initial first three homesteads of Kalamaula, Hoolehua and Keaukaha were chosen.  The 

programmatic funding of Home Assistance Program (home rehabilitation); HALE (financial 

literacy/foreclosure prevention); and Homeowner Financing (60/40 split; Deferred Sales Price; Self 

Help; IDA; DPA) were utilized in these areas and then expanded to other homestead areas in the last 

two years.  Homeowner Financing are direct loans (or Downpayment assistance) from the 

department and the availability is limited to new homestead awards coming online. 
 
 
 

 
    
               
 
  



 
 Page   16 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

   

SECTION 3: PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS  
                      (NAHASDA § [803(c)(2)(A)], [802(c)], [820(b)], 24 CFR §1006.410(b)(2) and (3)]) 
 

Planning and Reporting on Program Year Activities 

For the NHHP, the purpose of this section is to describe each program that will be operating during the 12-

month fiscal year.  Each program must include the eligible activity, its planned outputs, intended outcome, 

who will be assisted, and types and levels of assistance.  Each of the eligible activities has a specific, 

measurable output.  The first column in the table below lists all eligible activities, the second column 

identifies the output measure for each eligible activity, and the third column identifies when to consider an 

output as completed for each eligible activity.  Copy and paste text boxes 1.1 through 1.10 as often as needed 

so that all of your planned programs are included.   

For the APR, the purpose of this section is to describe your accomplishments, actual outputs, actual 

outcomes, and any reasons for delays.   

Eligible Activities May Include (citations below reference sections in NAHASDA) 

Eligible Activity 
Output 

Measure 
Output Completion 

(1) RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS 
NUMBER 

  

(2) RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS 
NUMBER 

  

(3) Acquisition of Rental Housing [810(b)(1)] Units When recipient takes title to the unit 

(4) Construction of Rental Housing [810(b)(1)] Units All work completed and unit passed final inspection 

(5) Rehabilitation of Rental Housing 
[810(b)(1)] 

Units All work completed and unit passed final inspection 

(6) Acquisition of Land for Rental Housing 
Development [810(b)(1)] 

Acres When recipient takes title to the land 

(7) Development of Emergency Shelters 
[810(b)(1)] 

Households 
Number of households served at any one time, based 

on capacity of the shelter 

(8) Conversion of Other Structures to 
Affordable Housing [810(b)(1)] 

Units All work completed and unit passed final inspection 

(9) Other Rental Housing Development 
[810(b)(1)] 

Units All work completed and unit passed final inspection 

(10) Acquisition of Land for Homebuyer Unit 
Development [810(b)(1)] 

Acres When recipient takes title to the land 

(11) New Construction of Homebuyer Units 
[810(b)(1)] 

Units All work completed and unit passed final inspection 

(12) Acquisition of Homebuyer Units 
[810(b)(1)] 

Units When recipient takes title to the unit 

(13) Down Payment/Closing Cost Assistance 
[810(b)(1)] 

Units When binding commitment signed 

(14) Lending Subsidies for Homebuyers 
(Loan) [810(b)(1)] 

Units When binding commitment signed 

(15) Other Homebuyer Assistance Activities 
[810(b)(1)] 

Units When binding commitment signed 

(16) Rehabilitation Assistance to Existing 
Homeowners [810(b)(1)] 

Units All work completed and unit passed final inspection 

(17) Tenant Based Rental Assistance 
[810(b)(2)] 

Households Count each household once per year 



 
 Page   17 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

(18) Other Housing Service [810(b)(2)] Households Count each household once per year 

(19) Housing Management Services 
[810(b)(3)] 

Households Count each household once per year 

(20) Operation and Maintenance of NHHBG-
Assisted Units [810(b)(3)] 

Units Number of units in inventory at Fiscal Year End 

(21) Crime Prevention and Safety [810(b)(4)] Dollars Dollars spent (report in Uses of Funding Table only) 

(22) Model Activities [810(b)(5)] Dollars Dollars spent (report in Uses of Funding Table only) 

(23) RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS 
NUMBER 

  

(24) Infrastructure to Support Housing 
[810(b)(1)] 

Improved Lots All work completed and lot passed final inspection 

(25) RESERVED – DO NOT USE THIS 
NUMBER 

  

 

 Outcome May Include:        

(1) Reduce over-crowding  (7) Create new affordable rental units  

(2) Assist renters to become homeowners  (8) Assist affordable housing for college students  

(3) Improve quality of substandard units  (9) Provide accessibility for disabled/elderly persons  

(4) Improve quality of existing infrastructure  (10) Improve energy efficiency  

(5) Address homelessness  (11) Reduction in crime reports  

(6) Assist affordable housing for low income 
households  

(12) Other – must provide description in boxes 1.4 
(NHHP) and 1.5 (APR)  

 
NHHP: PLANNED FISCAL YEAR ACTIVITIES (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(A))  
For each planned activity, complete all the non-shaded sections below.  It is recommended that for each program 
name you assign a unique identifier to help distinguish individual programs.  This unique number can be any number 
of your choosing, but it should be simple and clear so that you and HUD can track tasks and results under the program 
and collect appropriate file documentation tied to this program.   

▪ One way to number your programs is chronologically.  For example, you could number your programs 2014-1, 
2014-2, 2014-3, etc. 

▪ Or, you may wish to number the programs based on type.  For example rental 1, rental 2, homebuyer 1, 
homebuyer 2, etc.  This type of numbering system might be appropriate if you have many programs that last over 
several years. 

▪ Finally, you may wish to use an outline style of numbering.  For example, all programs under your first eligible 
activity would start with the number 1 and then be consecutively numbered as 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, etc.  The programs 
under the second eligible activity would be numbered as 2.1, 2.2., 2.3, etc. 

 

 
APR: REPORTING ON PROGRAM YEAR PROGRESS (NAHASDA § 820(b))     
        
Complete the shaded section of text below to describe your completed program tasks and actual results.  Only report 
on activities completed during the 12-month fiscal year.  Financial data should be presented using the same basis of 
accounting as the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) in the annual OMB Circular A-133* audit.  For 
unit accomplishments, only count units when the unit was completed and occupied during the year.  For households, 
only count the household if it received the assistance during the previous 12-month fiscal year. 
 
*DHHL should note that new Federal government regulations on Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements were promulgated on December 26, 2013 at 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  HUD intends to update its regulations by December 
26, 2014 to implement these new requirements in its programs.  In the meantime, applicable OMB Circulars and the regulations at 
2 C.F.R. Part 225 will continue to apply to existing grants.  After HUD implements the new requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (after 
December 26, 2014), all grants will be subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as implemented by HUD.



        

 
 Page   18 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

 

1.1 Program Name and Unique Identifier:   2020 Capital Improvement Projects (AHP I) 

 

1.2 Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 
  
This activity develops lots for residential use on Trust Lands statewide.  Potential project areas include Lot 165 in 
Panaewa, Hawaii Island.  
 

1.3 Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activity list.  Do not combine homeownership and 
rental housing in one activity, so that when housing units are reported in the APR they are correctly identified as 
homeownership or rental.):  

(24) Infrastructure to Support Housing [810(b)(1)] 

 

1.4 Intended Outcome Number (Select one outcome from the Outcome list.  Each program can have only one 
outcome.  If more than one outcome applies, create a separate program for each outcome.): 

 (2) Assist renters to become homeowners 

 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.5 Actual Outcome Number (In the APR identify the actual outcome from the Outcome list.):       
 

Describe Other Actual Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.6 Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program.  Please note: 
assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median should be included as a 
separate program within this section.):  

Applicant lessees or undivided interest lessees who meet NAHASDA criteria will receive vacant or 

improved lots for new home construction. 

 

 

1.7 Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be provided to each 
household, as applicable.):  

This activity covers the cost of the infrastructure for projects.  As most of the infrastructure is completed in 

areas where NHHBG had been expended over the past five years, and no new moneys exist to start new 

CIP developments, the outputs for this housing plan year may include expenditures made for planning and 

design. 

 
 

1.8 APR: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12-month fiscal year in accordance with 24 CFR § 
1006.410(b)(2) and (3)):       

 

 

 



 
 Page   19 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

1.9:  Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

Type of Output to be Completed in 
Fiscal Year Under this Program. 

Enter one of following choices in 
accordance with the Eligible 
Activity:  Units; Households; 
Improved Lots; Acres 

Planned Number 
of Outputs to be 
completed in 
Fiscal Year 
Under this 
Program 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Outputs 
Completed in 
Fiscal Year 

Improved Lots 0       

 

1.10:  APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2)) 

      
 

 

1.11:  APR: Describe the manner in which DHHL would change its housing plan as a result of its experiences.  (24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(4)).  NOTE:  It is sufficient to provide one response to this item rather than an individual response 
for each NHHBG-funded program. 

      
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  Remember to complete all the text boxes in Section 3 for each NHHBG-funded 
program.  If you are completing an electronic version of this form, you may copy and paste 
text boxes 1.1 through 1.11 as needed to describe each of your programs.  If you are 
completing this form in hard copy, you may photocopy Section 3 as needed to describe 
each of your programs.   



        

 
 Page   20 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

1.1 Program Name and Unique Identifier:   Developer Financing (AHP II) 
 

1.2 Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 
  

This activity provides funding for East Kapolei II wherein NHHBG funds are revolving for the 

development of turn-key homes.   
 

1.3 Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activity list.  Do not combine homeownership and 
rental housing in one activity, so that when housing units are reported in the APR they are correctly identified as 
homeownership or rental.):  

(4) Construction of Rental Housing [810(b)(1)] 

1.4 Intended Outcome Number (Select one outcome from the Outcome list.  Each program can have only one 
outcome.  If more than one outcome applies, create a separate program for each outcome.): 

 (7) Create new affordable rental units 

 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

1.5 Actual Outcome Number (In the APR identify the actual outcome from the Outcome list.):       

 

Describe Other Actual Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.6 Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program.  Please note: 
assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median should be included as a 
separate program within this section.):  

Undivided interest lessees meeting the 80% AMI income guidelines will have the opportunity to qualify 

for turn-key homes in East Kapolei II. 

 

1.7 Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be provided to each 
household, as applicable.):  

The assistance being provided will go directly to the developer as part of the capital stack for vertical 

construction financing. 

1.8 APR: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12-month fiscal year in accordance with 24 CFR § 
1006.410(b)(2) and (3)):       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page  21 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

1.9:  Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

 

Type of Output to be Completed in 
Fiscal Year Under this Program. 

Enter one of following choices in 
accordance with the Eligible 
Activity:  Units; Households; 
Improved Lots; Acres 

Planned Number 
of Outputs to be 
completed in 
Fiscal Year 
Under this 
Program 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Outputs 
Completed in 
Fiscal Year 

Units 2       

 
 

1.10:  APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2)) 

      
 
 
 

 
 

1.11:  APR: Describe the manner in which DHHL would change its housing plan as a result of its experiences.  (24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(4)).  NOTE:  It is sufficient to provide one response to this item rather than an individual response 
for each NHHBG-funded program. 

      
 
 
 
 

 
 
  



        

 
 Page   22 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

1.1 Program Name and Unique Identifier:   Homeowner Financing (AHP III) 
 

1.2 Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 
  

This activity utilizes the Department’s Direct Loan program, providing homeowner financing to eligible 

NAHASDA families for new construction, demolition/new build, and home rehab.  At present, eligible 

families already identified since 2013 are being serviced.  For new construction, DHHL is working to 

identify families in upcoming project areas for direct loans or down payment assistance. 
 

1.3 Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activity list.  Do not combine homeownership and 
rental housing in one activity, so that when housing units are reported in the APR they are correctly identified as 
homeownership or rental.):  

(14) Lending Subsidies for Homebuyers (Loan) [810(b)(1)] 

1.4 Intended Outcome Number (Select one outcome from the Outcome list.  Each program can have only one 
outcome.  If more than one outcome applies, create a separate program for each outcome.):  

(2) Assist renters to become homeowners 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.5 Actual Outcome Number (In the APR identify the actual outcome from the Outcome list.):       

Describe Other Actual Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.6 Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program.  Please note: 
assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median should be included as a 
separate program within this section.):  

 

Molokai:  8 families 

Maui: 5 families 

East Hawaii:  2 families 

West Hawaii:  4 families 

East Kapolei:  18 families 

Waimanalo:  4 families 

Papakolea: 2 families 

Kauai:  4 family 

1.7 Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be provided to each 

household, as applicable.): Financing for home loans/home repair statewide utilizing NHHBG funds for 

projects areas listed in 1.6. 
 

1.8 APR: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12-month fiscal year in accordance with 24 CFR § 
1006.410(b)(2) and (3)):       

 
 

 



Page  23 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

1.9:  Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

Type of Output to be Completed in 
Fiscal Year Under this Program. 

Enter one of following choices in 
accordance with the Eligible 
Activity:  Units; Households; 
Improved Lots; Acres 

Planned Number 
of Outputs to be 
completed in 
Fiscal Year 
Under this 
Program 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Outputs 
Completed in 
Fiscal Year 

Units 5       

 

1.10:  APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2)) 

      
 
 
 

 

1.11:  APR: Describe the manner in which DHHL would change its housing plan as a result of its experiences.  (24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(4)).  NOTE:  It is sufficient to provide one response to this item rather than an individual response 
for each NHHBG-funded program. 

      
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  Remember to complete all the text boxes in Section 3 for each NHHBG-funded 
program.  If you are completing an electronic version of this form, you may copy and paste 
text boxes 1.1 through 1.11 as needed to describe each of your programs.  If you are 
completing this form in hard copy, you may photocopy Section 3 as needed to describe 
each of your programs.   



        

 
 Page   24 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 
 

1.1 Program Name and Unique Identifier:   Home Assistance Program (HAP) (AHP IV) 
 

1.2 Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 
  

This program covers the department’s attempt to address substandard and/or aging housing on the 

homelands. Despite numerous delays over the past six years, some families are finally seeing actual work 

being done on their demolition/new builds or have completed much needed health and safety repairs on 

existing homes. 
 
 

1.3 Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activity list.  Do not combine homeownership and 
rental housing in one activity, so that when housing units are reported in the APR they are correctly identified as 
homeownership or rental.):  

(16) Rehabilitation Assistance to Existing Homeowners [810(b)(1)] 

 

1.4 Intended Outcome Number (Select one outcome from the Outcome list.  Each program can have only one 
outcome.  If more than one outcome applies, create a separate program for each outcome.):  

(3) Improve quality of substandard units 
 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.5 Actual Outcome Number (In the APR identify the actual outcome from the Outcome list.):       
 

Describe Other Actual Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.6 Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program.  Please note: 
assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median should be included as a 
separate program within this section.):  

Elderly families identified over the past 6 years are being assisted.   No new kupuna are being assisted 

until NAHASDA funding levels increase or existing families have completed their projects. 

 

1.7 Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be provided to each 
household, as applicable.): Families determined and identified by HAP or subrecipient staff as eligible will be assisted. This 

includes the 20 families who were waiting for help from the C&C of Honolulu program. 

Deferred, no-payment loans, subject to conditional recapture, as defined by HAP will be provided.  

NAHASDA eligible families will receive $100,000 to repair their home according to HUD Housing 

Quality Standards.  The standards would prioritize repairs for the home.  Those families whose homes 

have been identified as needing more than $100,000 to fix repairs are offered 1% loans on the amount 

that exceeds the first $100,000, up to an additional $100,000. 

 
 

1.8 APR: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12-month fiscal year in accordance with 24 CFR § 
1006.410(b)(2) and (3)):       

 



Page  25 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 

1.9:  Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

Type of Output to be Completed in 
Fiscal Year Under this Program. 

Enter one of following choices in 
accordance with the Eligible 
Activity:  Units; Households; 
Improved Lots; Acres 

Planned Number 
of Outputs to be 
completed in 
Fiscal Year 
Under this 
Program 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Outputs 
Completed in 
Fiscal Year 

Units 2       

 

1.10:  APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2)) 

      
 
 
 

 

1.11:  APR: Describe the manner in which DHHL would change its housing plan as a result of its experiences.  (24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(4)).  NOTE:  It is sufficient to provide one response to this item rather than an individual response 
for each NHHBG-funded program. 

      
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  Remember to complete all the text boxes in Section 3 for each NHHBG-funded 
program.  If you are completing an electronic version of this form, you may copy and paste 
text boxes 1.1 through 1.11 as needed to describe each of your programs.  If you are 
completing this form in hard copy, you may photocopy Section 3 as needed to describe 
each of your programs.   
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page  26 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

1.1 Program Name and Unique Identifier:   Rental Operating Subsidy (AHP V) 
 

1.2 Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 

This activity provides funds for use as a rental operating subsidy to eligible rental housing on Trust Lands 

in Waimanalo. 
  

1.3 Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activity list.  Do not combine homeownership and 
rental housing in one activity, so that when housing units are reported in the APR they are correctly identified as 
homeownership or rental.):  

(20) Operation and Maintenance of NHHBG-assisted Units 

1.4 Intended Outcome Number (Select one outcome from the Outcome list.  Each program can have only one 
outcome.  If more than one outcome applies, create a separate program for each outcome.):  

(6) Assist Affordable Housing for Low-Income Households 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.5 Actual Outcome Number (In the APR identify the actual outcome from the Outcome list.):       
 

Describe Other Actual Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.):       

 

1.6 Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program.  Please note: 
assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median should be included as a 
separate program within this section.):  

The rental housing project, with up to 85 units, on Trust Lands in Waimanalo will be assisted. 

1.7 Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be provided to each 
household, as applicable.):  

This project assisted with an annual operating subsidy paid directly to the development company. This 

elderly housing project was first occupied in 2002 and was constructed with funds from the state’s Low 

Income Housing Trust Fund and Rental Housing Trust Fund along with funds from DHHL and the Office 

of Hawaiian Affairs.  Many of the elderly are living on fixed income and cannot afford current rental rates 

under Hawaii Housing and Finance Development Corporation (HHFDC) which oversees the project and 

approves the rates from the developer.  The subsidy covers the difference between the NAHASDA 

required 30% cap on tenant’s adjusted gross income and the approved LITHC rent. 

 

1.8 APR: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12-month fiscal year in accordance with 24 CFR § 
1006.410(b)(2) and (3)):       

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page  27 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 

1.9:  Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

Type of Output to be Completed in 
Fiscal Year Under this Program. 

Enter one of following choices in 
accordance with the Eligible 
Activity:  Units; Households; 
Improved Lots; Acres 

Planned Number 
of Outputs to be 
completed in 
Fiscal Year 
Under this 
Program 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Outputs 
Completed in 
Fiscal Year 

Units in Inventory 40       

 

1.10:  APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2)) 

      
 
 
 

 

1.11:  APR: Describe the manner in which DHHL would change its housing plan as a result of its experiences.  (24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(4)).  NOTE:  It is sufficient to provide one response to this item rather than an individual response 
for each NHHBG-funded program. 

      
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  Remember to complete all the text boxes in Section 3 for each NHHBG-funded 
program.  If you are completing an electronic version of this form, you may copy and paste 
text boxes 1.1 through 1.11 as needed to describe each of your programs.  If you are 
completing this form in hard copy, you may photocopy Section 3 as needed to describe 
each of your programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page  28 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 
 

I.I  Program Name and Unique Identifier:  Rental Vouchers (AHP VI) 

1.2 Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 

 

This activity provides funds for rental housing vouchers (first month rent/deposit/emergency rent) to non 

profits already engaged in this activity. Eligible families will be 80% AMI and beneficiaries of the Hawaiian 

Homes Commission Act of 1920. 

1.3 Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activity list. Do not combine 

homeownership and rental housing in one activity, so that when housing units are reported in the APR 

they are correctly identified as homeownership or rental.): 

 

(17) Tenant Based Rental Assistance [8I0(b)(2)] 

1.4 Intended Outcome Number (Select one outcome from the Outcome list. Each program can have 

only one outcome. If more than one outcome applies, create a separate program for each outcome.): 

 

(6) Assist Affordable Housing for Low-Income Households 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.): 

1.5 Actual Outcome Number (In the APR identify the actual outcome from the Outcome list.): 

Describe other Actual Outcome (Only if You selected "Other." above.): 

1.6 Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program. 

Please note: assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median 

should be included as a separate program within this section.): 

 

Eligible families under the HHCA and Title VIII of NAHASDA. 

1.6 Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be 

provided to each household, as applicable.): 

 

At present a number of non-profits provide deposit/first months rent/emergency rent for families at risk of 

homelessness, overcrowding, or without shelter. The goal of this activity will have the DHHL conduct a  

Request for Proposals to provide funding to families eligible for this activity. With the average rent/deposit at 

approximately $2000 per family, the DHHL anticipates assisting over 500 families with funds recently 

appropriated. 



Page  29 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

l.8 APR.: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12 months in accordance with 24 .CFR 

§1006.4JQ(b)(2) and (3)):  

 

 

1.9:  Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

Type of Output to be 

Completed in Fiscal Year 

Under this Program. 

Enter one of following choices 

in accordance with the Eligible 

Activity:  Units; Households; 

Improved Lots; Acres 

Planned 

Number of 

Outputs to be 

completed in 

Fiscal Year 

Under this 

Program 

APR: Actual 

Number of 

Outputs 

Completed in 

Fiscal Year 

Households 15       

 

 

1.10:  APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2)) 

      
 
 
 

1.11:  APR: Describe the manner in which DHHL would change its housing plan as a result of its experiences.  (24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(4)).  NOTE:  It is sufficient to provide one response to this item rather than an individual response 
for each NHHBG-funded program. 

      
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  Remember to complete all the text boxes in Section 3 for each NHHBG-funded 
program.  If you are completing an electronic version of this form, you may copy and paste 
text boxes 1.1 through 1.11 as needed to describe each of your programs.  If you are 
completing this form in hard copy, you may photocopy Section 3 as needed to describe 
each of your programs. 
 



 

 
 Page   30 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 4: AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES  
 
This section of the NHHP is designed to provide the public with basic background information on the characteristics 
shaping DHHL’s affordable housing programs.  Each portion of the text below has several required components that must 
be discussed.  DHHL is encouraged to carefully review the instructions for each section and provide text covering all 
required elements. 
   

 
Housing Market (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(D)(i) and (ii)) (Describe the key characteristics of the housing market in the 
State of Hawaii, currently, and in the period of time covered by the plan. Include a description of the availability of 
housing from other public sources and private market housing, and how this supply of housing affected the DHHL’s 
program/activity choices.):  
 

Wages remain relatively low in Hawai'i making housing affordability a major issue for residents of 

the state. Because wages remain low, families living in Hawai'i often work more than one job to 

make ends meet. The SMS Study of 2006 indicated that 44% of all households in the state were at or 

below 80% of median income. According to the same report, even families with household incomes 

between 120% and 140% of median income in Hawai'i require affordable housing units given the 

high cost of housing. 

 

Almost one fourth (22.7%) of all Hawai'i residents pay over 40% of their monthly household 

income toward their shelter costs and approximately one third (34%) pay over 30% of their monthly 

household income toward their shelter costs. However, when examined closer it is clear that those 

households with income levels below 80% of the area median income are more likely to be paying 

over 30% of their household income toward shelter costs. More specifically, for all households in 

the state that are at or below 80% of area median income levels, about half (52.22%) pay over 30% 

of their monthly income toward shelter costs and approximately 38.33% pay over 40% of their 

monthly income toward shelter costs. Shelter to income ratios are higher for native Hawaiian 

households in that 45.5% pay over 40% of their monthly household income toward their shelter 

costs whereas only 36.6% of non-native households pay over 40% of their monthly household 

income toward shelter costs. 

 

The department’s NHHBG funded mortgage loans provide single family housing for the same or 

lower price than a studio in a multi-family high rise built by another housing agency in the urban 

core. Without NHHBG funding, the department would be unable to build or finance housing for 

the 80% AMI or below target population. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   



 

 
 Page   31 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 
Cooperation (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(D)(iii) (Describe the structure, coordination, and means of cooperation between 
DHHL and other relevant partners and organizations [including private nonprofit organizations experienced in the 
planning and development of affordable housing] in the development, submission, or implementation of its housing 
plan.  In addition, DHHL must indicate if it plans to use loan guarantees under Section 184A of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1992 and any other housing assistance provided by the Federal Government.):       
 
 
 

The department currently partners with a number of housing agencies and organizations 

either thru subject matter meetings or formal MOUs or agreements. Included in each of the 

activities of the plan above were the names of the organizations currently or about to receive, 

monies from the NHHBG. 

 

The Section 184A Loan Guarantee Program, which is similar to the Section 184 Loan Guarantee 

Program giving Native Americans access to private mortgage financing by providing loan 

guarantees to lenders, was implemented in 2007. Currently, Home Street Bank and Bank of 

Hawai'i are approved lenders for the Section 184 A loan program. 

 

DHHL has been utilizing the FHA 247 loan program since 1987. Almost $495 million in 

mortgage loans are outstanding through the FHA 247 loan program to lessees on Hawaiian home 

lands. The Veterans Affairs direct loan, Rural Development (U.S. Department of Agriculture) 

loan programs, and low-income housing tax credits are other financing options and tools utilized 

on Hawaiian home lands. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
   

 
Demolition and Disposition (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(D)(viii), 24 CFR 1006.101(b)(4)(viii)) (Describe any planned 
demolition or sale of NHHBG-assisted housing units, or any other demolition or disposition that will be carried out with 
NHHBG funds.  Be certain to include a financial analysis of the proposed demolition, the timetable for any planned 
demolition or disposition and any other information that is required by HUD with respect to the demolition or 
disposition.):  
 

There are no 1937 Act housing on Hawaiian home lands. The DHHL does not anticipate demolishing any 

units funded by the NHHBG. 
 
 
 

 
   



 

 
 Page   32 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 
Coordination (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(D)(ix) (Describe how DHHL will coordinate with partners to promote 
employment and self-sufficiency opportunities for residents of affordable housing.):  
 
 

The State of Hawai'i Department of Human Services (DHS) administers individual and family financial 

assistance programs that provide cash payments to help individuals and families meet their basic needs. 

The programs include Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF), Temporary Assistance to Other 

Needy Families (TAONF), General Assistance (GA), Aid to the Aged, Blind and Disabled (AABD) and 

the Food Stamps program. Medical assistance is provided through the Hawai'i QUEST and Medicaid fee-

for-services programs. Vocational rehabilitation services are provided to persons with disabilities. 

Whenever the DHHL staff is made aware of a lessee in need, the families are referred to DHS or to an 

appropriate non-profit service provider. 
 
 

 
   

 
Safety (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(D)(x)) (Describe how DHHL will promote crime prevention and resident involvement in 
affordable housing.):  
 

 

The DHHL continues to coordinate efforts with the Police Narcotics Division, the Sherriff’s Office and the 

Attorney General’s Office—Investigative Division to do surveillance and to evict the offending occupants 

whenever there is evidence of drug problems or other crimes in the homestead areas. If investigation results 

in a conviction, the lessee is taken to a contested case hearing for lease cancellation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 



 

 
 Page   33 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

Capacity (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(D)(xi)) (Describe the structure, capacity, and key personnel of the entities that will 
carry out the program/activities of the housing plan.):  
 

The DHHL was created by the State Legislature in 1964 to administer the Hawaiian home lands 

program and manage the Hawaiian home lands trust. The DHHL is one of eighteen principal 

agencies of the Executive Branch of the State of Hawai'i. 

 

The DHHL serves native Hawaiians or individuals of no less than 50% Hawaiian blood, as defined 

by the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as amended, and their successors and assigns. 

These native Hawaiians are the beneficiaries of the Hawaiian home lands trust consisting of a land 

trust of over 200,000 acres, settlement monies from the State for the mismanagement of trust lands, 

funds received from the State general fund for operating costs, and revenues and earnings from the 

land leasing program. 

 

The DHHL is governed by a nine-member board of commissioners headed by the Chairman, who 

also serves as the executive officer of the DHHL. The Governor of the State of Hawai'i appoints 

each commissioner and Chairman to a four-year term.  The terms of the commissioners are 

staggered. 

 

Currently, there are 134 full time employees in DHHL with six offices statewide. DHHL’s main 

administrative office is located in Kapolei, Oahu and the five (5) district offices are located on 

neighbor islands. There are two (2) district offices on the Big Island, one in Hilo (East Hawaii) and 

one in Waimea (West Hawai'i), Hawai'i; one (1) district office in Lihue, Kauai; one (1) district 

office in Wailuku, Maui; and one (1) district office in Kalamaula, Molokai. DHHL is organized 

into five offices and three divisions under the Hawaiian Homes Commission and Office of the 

Chairman. The various offices and divisions are described as follows: 

 

Office of the Chairman (OCH) — 21 staff members 

The Office of the Chairman consists of the Chairman of the Hawaiian Homes Commission, who is 

also the Director of Department of Hawaiian Home Lands; the Deputy to the Chairman, the 

Executive Assistant; the NAHASDA Manager, HALE Manager, NAHASDA Program Specialist, 

NAHASDA Compliance Specialist, NAHASDA Clerk; and executive staff. 
 

Administrative Services Office (ASO) – 7 staff members 

The Administrative Services Office provides DHHL staff support in the areas of personnel, 

budgeting, program evaluation, information and communication systems, risk management, 

facilities management, clerical services and other administrative services. This office also provides 

support services in preparation of legislative proposals and testimonies, coordinates the preparation 

of reports to the legislature and facilitates the rule-making process. 

 

Fiscal Office (FO) – 12 staff members 

The Fiscal Office provides accounting support for DHHL. One accountant is dedicated to the 

NHHBG whose position is currently vacant. 
 

Planning Office (PO) -  10 staff members 

The Planning Office conducts research and planning studies required in the development of policies, 

programs, and projects to benefit native Hawaiians. The PO coordinates and develops the Regional 

Plans, administers the Native Hawaiian Development Program, provides capacity building training 

for homestead organizations, and provides community based grants for the implementation of 

Regional priority projects, community based economic development, and membership development. 



 

 
 Page   34 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 

Information and Community Relations Office (ICRO) – 5 staff members 

The Information and Community Relations Office disseminates information to the public on 

Department issues, oversees community relations with the various homestead communities and 

coordinates DHHL’s ceremonies.  They also publish DHHL’s annual reports to the State 

Legislature. 

 

Homestead Services Division (HSD) – 32 staff members 

HSD is composed of three branches: 1) Homestead Applications, 2) District Operations, and 3) 

Loan Services. HSD is the largest division in DHHL, has staff on all islands, and services more 

than 25,000 applicants and 8,000 lessees on five islands. 

 

Land Management Division (LMD) – 10 staff members 

LMD is responsible for managing Hawaiian home lands that are not used for homestead purposes. 

Unencumbered lands are managed and disposed of for long and short term uses in order to generate 

revenues and keep the lands productive while minimizing the occurrence of vegetative overgrowth, 

squatting or illegal dumping.  LMD is responsible for properly managing the lands in DHHL’s 

inventory. 

 

Land Development Division (LDD) – 17 staff members 

LDD is charged with the responsibility of developing trust lands for homesteading and income-

producing purposes. This is accomplished through the development of properties for residential, 

agricultural, pastoral, and economic development uses. LDD has three operating branches: 1) 

Design and Construction – concentrating on the design and construction of off-site and on-site 

improvements for the various subdivisions; 2) Master-Planned Community – expediting the 

construction of housing options through partnerships with private sector and exploring other 

housing opportunities; and, 3) Housing Project—providing turn-key homes and assisting lessees of 

vacant lots in arranging financing and in contracting with a builder, including self-help and Habitat 

programs. 

 

The following is a listing of the key personnel responsible for the implementation of DHHL and 

NAHASDA assisted programs: 
 

Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) 

William J. Aila, Jr., Chairman 

David Kaapu, West Hawaii Commissioner 

Michael Kaleikini, East Hawaii Commissioner  

Randy Awo, Maui Commissioner 

Zachary Helm, Molokai Commissioner  

Pauline Namuo, Oahu Commissioner  

Patricia (Patty) Kahanamoku-Teruya, Oahu 

Commissioner  

Russell Kaupu, Oahu Commissioner 

Dennis Neves, Kauai Commissioner 

 

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 

William J. Aila, Jr., Director 

Tyler Iokepa Gomes, Deputy to the Chairman  

Rodney Lau, Administrative Services Officer  

Pearl Teruya, Fiscal Management Officer 



 

 
 Page   35 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

Andrew Choy, Acting Planning Program Manager 

Cedric Duarte, Info Community & Relations Officer 

David Hoke, Enforcement Supervisor  

Niniau Simmons, Manager (NAHASDA) 

Trisha Paul, Program Specialist (NAHASDA) 

Cynthia Rezentes, NAHASDA Compliance Specialist 

Michelle Hitzeman, HALE Manager 

Juan Garcia, Homestead Services District Supervisor III  

Nina Fisher, East Hawaii Homestead District Supervisor 

James Du Pont, West Hawaii Homestead District Supervisor II  

Gene Ross Davis, Molokai Homestead District Supervisor II  

Dean Oshiro, Housing Services Division Administrator  

 

Nadine Pomroy, Clerk (NAHASDA) 

Stewart Matsunaga, Land Development Division Administrator 

Kelbert Yoshida, Engineer III 

Jeff Fujimoto, Engineer VI 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 Page   36 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 

SECTION 5: BUDGETS 
(1) Sources of Funding (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(C)(i) and 820(b)(1)) (Complete the non-shaded portions of the chart below to describe your estimated or 
anticipated sources of funding for the 12-month fiscal year.  APR Actual Sources of Funding -- Please complete the shaded portions of the chart below 
to describe your actual funds received.  Only report on funds actually received and under a grant agreement or other binding commitment during 
the 12-month fiscal year.)   

   NHHP APR 

SOURCE 

 

(A)  
Estimated 
amount on 

hand at 
beginning of 
fiscal year 

(B)  
Estimated 

amount to be 
received 

during 12-
month fiscal 

year 

(C)  
Estimated 

total sources 
of funds 
(A + B) 

(D)  
Estimated 

funds to be 
expended 
during 12- 

month fiscal 
year 

(E)  
Estimated 

unexpended 
funds remaining 
at end of fiscal 

year 
(C minus D) 

(F)  
Actual 

amount on 
hand at 

beginning of 
fiscal year 

(G)  
Actual 
amount 
received 

during 12-
month fiscal 

year 

(H)  
Actual total 
sources of 

funding 
(F + G) 

(I)  
Actual funds 

expended 
during 12-

month fiscal 
year 

(J)  
Actual 

unexpended 
funds remaining 

at end of 12-
month fiscal 

year (H minus I) 

(K)  
Actual 

unexpended 
funds obligated 

but not 
expended at 

end of 12-
month fiscal 

year 

1. NHHBG Funds 
14,638,221 2,000,000 16,638,221 290,000 16,348,221                                     

2. NHHBG Program     
     Income 0 139,583 139,583 139,583 0                                     

LEVERAGED FUNDS 
           

3. Other Federal  
     Funds       1,767,734 1,767,734 2,305,417 0                                     

4. LIHTC 
                                                                  

5. Non-Federal  
    Funds                                                                   

TOTAL 
14,638,221 3,907,317 18,545,538 2,735,000 16,348,221                                     

Notes: 
a. For the NHHP, fill in columns A, B, C, D, and E (non-shaded columns). For the APR, fill in columns F, G, H, I, J, and K (shaded columns). 
b. Total of Column D should match the total of Column N from the Uses Table on the following page. 
c. Total of Column I should match the Total of Column Q from the Uses Table on the following page. 
d.  For the NHHP, describe any estimated leverage in Line 3 below. For the APR, describe actual leverage in Line 4 below (APR).



 

 
 Page   37 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 
 

(2) Uses of Funding (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(C)(ii)) (Note that the budget should not exceed the total funds on hand (Column C) and insert as many rows as 
needed to include all the programs identified in Section 3.  Actual expenditures in the APR section are for the 12-month fiscal year.)     

      
 NHHP APR 

PROGRAM NAME 

(tie to program names in  
Section 3 above) 

Unique 
Identifier 

(L)  
Prior and current 

year NHHBG (only) 
funds to be 

expended in 12-
month fiscal year 

(M) 
Total all other 

funds to be 
expended in 12-

month fiscal year 

(N) 
Total funds to be 
expended in 12-

month fiscal year 
(L + M) 

(O) 
Total NHHBG (only) 
funds expended in 

12-month fiscal 
year 

(P) 
Total all other funds 

expended in 12-
month fiscal year 

(Q) 
Total funds expended 

in 12-month fiscal 
year 

(O+P) 

 

2020 CIP AHP I  265,000 265,000                   

 

Developer Financing AHP II       

Homeowner 

Financing AHP III  1,400,000 1,400,000                   

 

HAP AHP IV  400,000 400,000                   

Rental Operating 

Subsidy AHP V  250,000 250,000                   

Rental Vouchers 

 AHP VI  50,000 50,000    

 
Planning and Administration  290,000 80,000 370,000                   

Loan Repayment – describe 
in 3 and 4 below.                                      

 
TOTAL 290,000 2,445,000 2,735,000                   

Notes:  
a. Total of Column L cannot exceed the NHHBG funds from Column C, Row 1 from the Sources Table on the previous page.  
b. Total of Column M cannot exceed the total from Column C, Rows 2-10 from the Sources Table on the previous page.   
c. Total of Column O cannot exceed total NHHBG funds received in Column H, Row 1 from the Sources Table on the previous page. 
d. Total of Column P cannot exceed total of Column H, Rows 2-10 of the Sources Table on the previous page. 
e. Total of Column Q should equal total of Column I of the Sources Table on the previous page. 



 

 
 Page   38 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

  

 
(3) Estimated Sources or Uses of Funding (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(C)).  (Provide any additional information 
about the estimated sources or uses of funding, including leverage (if any).  You must provide the relevant 
information for any planned loan repayment.  The text must describe which specific loan is planned to be 
repaid and the NAHASDA-eligible activity and program associated with this loan):   

 

The department anticipates using only program income and block grant balances for activities in this 

housing plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
(4) APR (NAHASDA § 820(b)(1)) (Enter any additional information about the actual sources or uses of 

funding, including leverage (if any).        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 Page   39 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 6:  OTHER SUBMISSION ITEMS   
   
     

(1) Useful Life/Affordability Period(s) (NAHASDA § 813, 24 CFR § 1006.305) (Describe your plan or system for 
determining the useful life/affordability period of the housing assisted with NHHBG funds.  A record of the current, 
specific useful life/affordability period for housing units assisted with NHHBG funds must be maintained in 
DHHL’s files and available for review for the useful life/affordability period.): 

 

 
DHHL has established the following affordability periods to describe the term during which DHHL will keep the unit 

affordable:  

 

NHHBG Funds Invested Affordability Period 

Up to $24,999 6 months 

$25,000 to $50,000 1 year 
$50,001 to $100,000 10 years 

$100,001 to $150,000 20 years 

$150,001 and above  30 years 

 
 

The affordability period is based on the total amount of NHHBG funds invested in the development and/or 

rehabilitation of a housing unit. Resale and recapture provisions will be included as a condition of the Hawaiian 

homestead lease to enforce the affordability restriction for each assisted housing unit. 

 
 

   
    
 

 
(2) Model Housing and Over-Income Activities (NAHASDA § 810(b)(5) and 809(a)(2)(B), 24 CFR § 1006.225 and 

1006.301(b)) (If you wish to undertake a model housing activity or wish to serve non-low-income households 
during the 12-month fiscal year, those activities may be described here.  Each approved model activity must be 
included as a separate program in Section 3 (Program Descriptions) and the APR portions of Section 3 must be 
completed in the APR submission for any approved model activity.): 

   
  
 
 
 

 
   

 
(3) Anticipated Planning and Administration Expenses (NAHASDA § 802(d), 24 CFR § 1006.230)   
   

Do you intend to exceed your allowable spending cap for Planning and Administration?    Yes      No   

     

 
If yes, describe why the additional funds are needed for Planning and Administration.       

 
 
 
 

 
 



Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG)    Exempt from OMB Approval. 5 CFR 1320.3 (c) (4) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                    

NHHP/APR     Office of Public and Indian Housing       

      Office of Native American Programs 

    

 

 
 Page   40 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

(4) Actual Planning and Administration Expenses (NAHASDA § 802(d), 24 CFR § 1006.230)   
   

Did you exceed your spending cap for Planning and Administration? Yes      No   

 

If yes, did you receive HUD approval to exceed your spending cap on Planning and Administration?  Yes      No   

     

If you did not receive approval for exceeding your spending cap on Planning and Administration costs, describe the 
reason(s) for exceeding the cap. 
 
 

 

 
 



 

 
 Page   41 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 7:  NATIVE HAWAIIAN HOUSING PLAN CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE     
  (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(E))  

    
By signing the NHHP, you certify that you have all required policies and procedures in place in order to operate any 
planned NHHBG programs.    
   

(1) In accordance with applicable statutes, the recipient certifies that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act  
of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) or with the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) in carrying out the 
NHHBG program, to the extent that such Acts are applicable, and other applicable federal statutes. 
    

Yes      No       

 
The following certifications will only apply where applicable based on program activities. 
 

(2) The recipient will require adequate insurance coverage for housing units that are owned and operated or assisted 
with grant amounts provided under NAHASDA, in compliance with such requirements as may be established by 
HUD. 

Yes      No     Not Applicable    

 
(3) Policies are in effect and are available for review by HUD and the public governing the eligibility, admission, and 

occupancy of families for housing assisted with grant amounts provided under NAHASDA.  
   

Yes      No     Not Applicable       

    
(4) Policies are in effect and are available for review by HUD and the public governing rents charged, including the 

methods by which such rents or homebuyer payments are determined, for housing assisted with grant amounts 
provided under NAHASDA. 

Yes       No     Not Applicable     and  

  
(5) Policies are in effect and are available for review by HUD and the public governing the management and 

maintenance of housing assisted with grant amounts provided under NAHASDA.     

Yes       No     Not Applicable      

    



 

 
 Page   42 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 8:  SELF-MONITORING  
                       (NAHASDA § 819(b), 24 CFR § 1006.401)      
        
(1) Do you have a procedure and/or policy for self-monitoring? 
 

        Yes        No     

  
(2) Did you conduct self-monitoring, including monitoring sub-recipients? 
 

         Yes        No     

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
(3) Self-Monitoring Results.  (Describe the results of the monitoring activities, including inspections for this 

program year.):      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 Page   43 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 9:  INSPECTIONS  
                       (NAHASDA § 819(b))                                                   
                                                                                                                                                                                            
(1) Inspection of Units (Use the table below to record the results of inspections of assisted housing.)      
   

     Results of Inspections 

(A) 
 

Activity 

(B) 
 

Total number 
of units 

inspected  
 

(C) 
 

Total 
number of 

units 
(Inventory) 

NAHASDA-Assisted  Units: 
Running inventory as of Fiscal 
Year Beginning (July 1) a 12-
month total. 

  

a. New Construction Completed             

b. Rehab/Repair Completed             

c. Rental Assistance (if 
applicable) 

            

d. Other             

Total             

 
          

(2) Did you comply with your inspection policy:  Yes    No:  

 

 
(3) If no, why not:       

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 Page   44 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 10:  AUDITS 
               (24 CFR § 1006.375(d)) 

 
This section is used to indicate whether an Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133* audit is required, based on 
a review of your financial records.   
 
Did you expend $500,000* or more in total Federal awards during the APR reporting period? 
 

Yes        No     

 
If Yes, an audit is required to be submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse and the Office of Native American 
Programs. 
 
If No, an audit is not required.   
 
*DHHL should note that new Federal government regulations on Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements were promulgated on December 26, 2013 at 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  HUD intends to update its regulations by December 26, 
2014 to implement these new requirements in its programs.  Audits covering recipients’ fiscal years that begin in January 2015 will be 
subject to the revised audit requirements.  In the meantime, applicable OMB Circulars and the regulations at 2 C.F.R. Part 225 will 
continue to apply to grants until implementation of the new requirements. 

 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 Page   45 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 11: PUBLIC AVAILABILITY          
                        (NAHASDA § 820(d), 24 CFR § 1006.410(c)) 
 
(1) Did you make this APR available to the beneficiaries of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act before it was submitted 

to HUD?        
           

 Check one: Yes       No        

  
  
          

 

(2) If you answered “No” to question #1, provide an explanation as to why not and indicate when you will do so.  
 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 
    

 
(3) Summarize any comments received from the beneficiaries (NAHASDA § 820(d)(2)). 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 Page   46 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 12:  JOBS SUPPORTED BY NAHASDA       
              (NAHASDA § 820)  
 
 Use the table below to record the number of jobs supported with NHHBG funds each year (including DHHL staff, 
Subrecipient staff, Contractors, etc.). 
 
  

 
Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant Assistance (NHHBG) 

 

(1) Number of Permanent Jobs Supported 
 

      

(2) Number of Temporary Jobs Supported 
 

      

 
              
         
          

 

(3) Narrative (optional):       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
     
        



Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG)    Exempt from OMB Approval. 5 CFR 1320.3 (c) (4) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                    

NHHP/APR     Office of Public and Indian Housing       

      Office of Native American Programs 

    

 

 
 Page   47 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 13: NHHP WAIVER REQUESTS  
                         (NAHASDA § 802(b)(2), 24 CFR 1006.20(b)) 
              

THIS SECTION IS ONLY REQUIRED IF DHHL IS REQUESTING A WAIVER OF A NHHP SECTION 
OR A WAIVER OF THE NHHP SUBMISSION DUE DATE.  Fill out the form below if you are requesting a 

waiver of one or more sections of the NHHP.  NOTE:  This is NOT a waiver of the NHHBG program requirements but 
rather a request to waive some of the NHHP submission items because DHHL cannot comply due to circumstances 
beyond its control.     
 

(1) List below the sections of the NHHP where you are requesting a waiver and/or a waiver of the NHHP due date.  
(List the requested waiver sections by name and section number):       

 

 
 

(2) Describe the reasons that you are requesting this waiver (Describe completely why you are unable to complete a 
particular section of the NHHP or could not submit the NHHP by the required due date.):       

 

 
 

     
 

(3)  Describe the actions you will take in order to ensure that you are able to submit a complete NHHP in the future 
and/or submit the NHHP by the required due date. (This section should completely describe the procedural, 
staffing or technical corrections that you will make in order to submit a complete NHHP in the future and/or 
submit the NHHP by the required due date.):            

 

 
 

 

 

(4) Recipient:       

(5)  Authorized Official’s Name and 
       Title: 

      

(6)  Authorized Official’s Signature:       

(7)  Date (MM/DD/YYYY):       



Native Hawaiian Housing Block Grant (NHHBG)    Exempt from OMB Approval. 5 CFR 1320.3 (c) (4) 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                    

NHHP/APR     Office of Public and Indian Housing       

      Office of Native American Programs 

    

 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only.  Page   48 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

SECTION 14: NHHP AMENDMENTS  
                         (24 CFR § 1006.101(d)) 

 
Use this section for NHHP amendments only.   

 
Fill out the text below to summarize your NHHP amendment.  Copy and paste Section 14 for each amendment.  This 
amendment is only required to be submitted to the HUD Office of Native American Programs when the recipient is adding 
a new activity that was not described in the current One-Year Plan that has been determined to be in compliance by 
HUD.  All other amendments will be reflected in the APR and do not need to be submitted to HUD.   
 
NOTE:  A Cover Page is strongly recommended but not required with a NHHP Amendment submission. 
 
 
APR: REPORTING ON PROGRAM YEAR PROGRESS (NAHASDA § 820(b))     
        
Complete the shaded section of text below to describe your completed program tasks and actual results.  Only report on 
activities completed during the 12-month fiscal year.  Financial data should be presented using the same basis of 
accounting as the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) in the annual OMB Circular A-133* audit.  For 
unit accomplishments, only count units when the unit was completed and occupied during the year.  For households, 
only count the household if it received the assistance during the previous 12-month fiscal year.  
 
*DHHL should note that new Federal government regulations on Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements were promulgated on December 26, 2013 at 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  HUD intends to update its regulations by December 
26, 2014 to implement these new requirements in its programs.  In the meantime, applicable OMB Circulars and the regulations at 2 
C.F.R. Part 225 will continue to apply to existing grants.  After HUD implements the new requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (after 
December 26, 2014), all grants will be subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as implemented by HUD. 

 
 

(1) Program Name and Unique Identifier:       
 

(2) Program Description (This should be the description of the planned program.): 

            

 

 

(3) Eligible Activity Number (Select one activity from the Eligible Activities list in Section 3. Do not combine 
homeownership and rental housing in one activity, so that when units are reported in the APR they are 
correctly identified as homeownership or rental.): 

            

 



 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only.  Page   49 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

(4) Intended Outcome Number (Select one Outcome from the Outcome list in Section 3.): 

           

 

Describe Other Intended Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.): 

      

 

(5) Actual Outcome Number (Select one Outcome from the Outcome list in Section 3.): 

        

 

Describe Other Actual Outcome (Only if you selected "Other" above.): 

      

 

(6) Who Will Be Assisted (Describe the types of households that will be assisted under the program.  Please 
note:  assistance made available to families whose incomes exceed 80 percent of the median income 
should be included as a separate program within this Section.): 

      

 

 

 

(7). Types and Level of Assistance (Describe the types and the level of assistance that will be provided to 
each household, as applicable.): 

      

 

 

 

(8). APR: (Describe the accomplishments for the APR in the 12-month fiscal year.  In accordance with 24 
CFR § 1006.410(b)(2) and (3), provide an analysis and explanation of cost overruns or high unit costs.):  

      

 

 

 

 
 

(9). Planned and Actual Outputs for 12-Month Fiscal Year  

Planned 
Number of 
Units to be 
Completed in 
Year Under this 
Program 

Planned Number 
of Households 
To Be Served in 
Year Under this 
Program 

Planned 
Number of 
Acres To Be 
Purchased in 
Year Under this 
Program 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Units 
Completed in 
Fiscal Year 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Households 
Served in Fiscal 
Year 

APR: Actual 
Number of 
Acres 
Purchased in 
Fiscal Year 

                                    



 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only.  Page   50 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 

(10). APR: If the program is behind schedule, explain why.  (24 CFR § 1006.410(b)(2))       

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only. Page   51 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

(11) Amended Sources of Funding (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(C)(i)) (Complete the non-shaded portions of the chart below to describe your estimated or anticipated 
sources of funding for the 12-month fiscal year.  APR Actual Sources of Funding -- Please complete the shaded portions of the chart below to describe your 
actual funds received.  Only report on funds actually received and under a grant agreement or other binding commitment during the 12-month fiscal 
year.)   

   NHHP APR 

SOURCE 

 

(A)  
Estimated 
amount on 

hand at 
beginning of 
fiscal year 

(B)  
Estimated 

amount to be 
received 

during 12-
month fiscal 

year 

(C)  
Estimated 

total sources 
of funds 
(A + B) 

(D)  
Estimated 

funds to be 
expended 
during 12- 

month fiscal 
year 

(E)  
Estimated 

unexpended 
funds remaining 
at end of fiscal 

year 
(C minus D) 

(F)  
Actual 

amount on 
hand at 

beginning of 
fiscal year 

(G)  
Actual 
amount 
received 

during 12-
month fiscal 

year 

(H)  
Actual total 
sources of 

funding 
(F + G) 

(I)  
Actual funds 

expended 
during 12-

month fiscal 
year 

(J)  
Actual 

unexpended 
funds remaining 

at end of 12-
month fiscal 

year (H minus I) 

(K)  
Actual 

unexpended 
funds obligated 

but not 
expended at 

end of 12-
month fiscal 

year 

6. NHHBG Funds 
                                                                  

7. NHHBG Program     
     Income                                                                   

LEVERAGED FUNDS 
           

8. Other Federal  
     Funds                                                                   

9. LIHTC 
                                                                  

10. Non-Federal  
Funds                                                                   

TOTAL 
                                                                  

 
  

Notes: 
a. For the NHHP, fill in columns A, B, C, D, and E (non-shaded columns). For the APR, fill in columns F, G, H, I, J, and K (shaded columns). 
b. Total of Column D should match the total of Column N from the Uses Table on the following page. 
c. Total of Column I should match the Total of Column Q from the Uses Table on the following page.



 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only. Page   52 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

(12) Amended Uses of Funding (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(C)(ii)) (Note that the budget should not exceed the total funds on hand and insert as many rows as needed 
to include all the programs identified in Section 3.  Actual expenditures in the APR section are for the 12-month fiscal year.)     

      
 NHHP APR 

PROGRAM NAME 

(tie to program names in  
Section 3 above) 

Unique 
Identifier 

(L) 
Prior and current 

year NHHBG (only) 
funds to be 

expended in 12-
month fiscal year 

(M) 
Total all other 

funds to be 
expended in 12-

month fiscal year 

(N) 
Total funds to be 
expended in 12-

month fiscal year 
(L + M) 

(O) 
Total NHHBG (only) 
funds expended in 

12-month fiscal 
year 

(P) 
Total all other funds 

expended in 12-
month fiscal year 

(Q) 
Total funds expended 

in 12-month fiscal 
year 

(O+P) 

      

                                           

      

                                           

      

                                           

      

                                           

      

                                           

      

                                           

      

                                           

 
Planning and Administration                                           

Loan repayment                                            

 
TOTAL                                     

Notes:  
a. Total of Column L cannot exceed the NHHBG funds from Column C, Row 1 from the Sources Table on the previous page.  
b. Total of Column M cannot exceed the total from Column C, Rows 2-10 from the Sources Table on the previous page.   
c. Total of Column O cannot exceed total NHHBG funds received in Column H, Row 1 from the Sources Table on the previous page. 
d. Total of Column P cannot exceed total of Column H, Rows 2-10 of the Sources Table on the previous page. 
e. Total of Column Q should equal total of Column I of the Sources Table on the previous page. 

 



 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only. Page   53 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

 

 
(13) Estimated Sources or Uses of Funding (NAHASDA § 803(c)(2)(C)).  (Provide any additional 
information about the estimated sources or uses of funding, including leverage (if any).  You must provide the 
relevant information for any planned loan repayment listed in the Uses Table on the previous page.  The text 
must describe which specific loan is planned to be repaid and the NAHASDA-eligible activity and program 
associated with this loan):        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                        

  

 
(14) APR (NAHASDA § 820(b)(1)) (Enter any additional information about the actual sources or uses of 

funding, including leverage (if any).  You must provide the relevant information for any actual loan repayment 
listed in the Uses Table on the previous page.  The text must describe which loan was repaid and the 
NAHASDA-eligible activity and program associated with this loan.):       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
Use this page for NHHP amendments only.  Page   54 form HUD-50090 (02/28/2014) 

 

(15) Recipient:       

(16)  Authorized Official’s Name and 
        Title: 

      

(17)  Authorized Official’s Signature: 

I certify that all other sections of the NHHP approved on       are 
accurate and reflect the activities planned. 
      
 
 

(18)  Date (MM/DD/YYYY):       

 

























































































DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

E-2

March 16-17 2020

For Information Only

Waimanalo Project Updates



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Kakaʻina House Construction
Kumuhau Subdivision (52 lots)

45 Turnkey
7 Self-help

Kakaina Subdivision (45 lots)
30 Turnkey
30 Vacant Lots



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Waikupanaha Agricultural Lots
Draft Environmental Assessment 
published November 2019

Recommending HHC approval of FONSI 
March 2020

30 subsistence agricultural lots (0.5 - 0.7 
acres)

Phase 1 construction bid scheduled for 
mid-2020

6 lots

Backbone Infrastructure 

$1.3 million Legislative funds



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Wong Farm Land Acquisition

104.547 acres conveyed by 
DLNR to DHHL in 2018

Existing DLNR GL expires 
November 30, 2029

Potential for residential and/or 
subsistence agriculture



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Waiokeola Stream & Drainage Channel Improvements

• Improvements to dirt drainage 

channel

• Install rip rap in various areas

• Install Fencing 

• Bid in Fall 2020

• Cost Estimate: $1 million



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Waimanalo Flood Control Channel Improvements

• Concrete lined channel 

• Runs from Kumauna Place down 

to Kalanianaole Highway

• Improvements include:

• Spall work

• Crack Repair

• Fence Repair

• Tree Removal

• Lining

• Cost Est. $ 2.2 Million

• Bid in late 2020



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Bell Street Drainage Improvements

• Design conversion to pipe drainage and 

new outlet

• Design to be completed in early 2021

• Funds required: $3 million



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

WAIMANALO WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Project Objectives
1. Fix sewer deficiencies identified 

through various field inspections 
2. Upgrade existing DHHL sewers to 

the current City standards for 
ownership transfer to the City

3. Convert cesspools as required by 
Act 125, SLH 2017.

Summary
650 lots connected to City sewer 

system
80 individual onsite sewage disposal 

systems (OSDS)

Remedial Actions
Repair/replace existing DHHL sewers 

($18 million)
Conversion of OSDS with pump 

station and new collector ($12+ 
million)



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Mahalo

www.dhhl.hawaii.gov







	 - 2 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

 
 11/20/18: Public outreach for the EA begins 
 02/01/19: Survey distributed to waitlisted beneficiaries 
 03/18/19: HHC Meeting in Kapolei; Community Meeting in 

Waimānalo 
 07/08/19: Public outreach for the EA includes updated project 

information 
 11/14/19: Beneficiary Meeting in Waimānalo 
 11/18/19: Waimānalo Neighborhood Board No. 32 Meeting 
 11/23/19: Draft EA Publication in The Environmental Notice  
 11/23/19 – 12/23/19: 30-day Draft EA Public Review and Comment Period 

 
In addition to the above community engagement for the EA as a whole, Cultural Surveys 

Hawaii (CSH) conducted its outreach for a cultural impact assessment (CIA) portion of the EA 
commencing in November 2018.  The outreach effort by CSH included letters, email, telephone 
calls and in-person contact.  The approval of formal interview summaries was pursued through 
October 2019.  Of the 11 people that responded to outreach initiated by CSH, three (3) kama‘āina 
and/or kūpuna approved their interview summaries that are included in the CIA report.  
 
PROJECT PURPOSE 

The Project represents one of DHHL’s new endeavors to award smaller lots for subsistence 
agriculture.  DHHL has observed that the utilization of large agricultural lots awarded to 
beneficiaries is poor because many lessees are unable to conduct agricultural operations at a 
commercial scale.  The input that DHHL received from agricultural applicants, current farmers 
utilizing DHHL land, and the University of Hawaii College of Tropical Agriculture and Human 
Resources (CTAHR) agricultural extension agents suggests that one-acre lots are sufficient to 
support subsistence agriculture.  In 2017, DHHL updated its Administrative Rules (Chapters 10-
3-24 and 10-3-26, Hawaiʻi Administrative Rules) to allow for Subsistence Agricultural Homestead 
(SAH) lots of not more than three acres in size.  The rules specify that lessees are required to, 
within three years: (1) reside and cultivate subsistence agriculture on their lots, or (2) actively 
cultivate food crops or raise small livestock or both for subsistence agriculture purposes. 
 

DHHL is proposing to consolidate and re-subdivide about 30 acres of its land in 
Waimānalo Ahupuaʻa, Koʻolaupoko District, Oʻahu Island.  Any areas determined to be unsuitable 
for development will not be awarded.  The project site in Waimānalo is within a rural area that 
continues to support agricultural endeavors.  Waikupanaha is the name of a mauka or upland 
stream that reportedly supported taro, banana trees, and white ginger.  There are existing buildings 
and structures associated with observed agricultural and equestrian activities within DHHL’s 
parcels.  Field observations and available land use information suggests that the affected parcels 
have been altered by land-disturbing activities associated with agriculture, animal husbandry and 
a quarrying operation.  Select areas within the project site appear to have solid waste concerns due 
to past usage.  Some portions of Waikupanaha Street encroach into DHHL’s parcels. 
 
  



	 - 3 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
The Project is consistent with the agency’s mission and consists of the following design 

elements and features: 
 

 Lot size.  The Project is expected to create approximately 30 subsistence agricultural 
homestead lots suitable for award.  Each lot will be approximately 0.5 to 0.75 acres in 
size. 

 Utilities.  The Project will include the installation of on-site infrastructure (e.g., water, 
sewer, electric, drainage, and communication systems) and connection to existing nearby 
municipal infrastructure, which is primarily along Hihimanu Street. 

 Waikupanaha Street improvements.  Portions of the existing roadway that currently 
encroach into DHHL’s parcels will be addressed as part of the Project. 

 
Figure E1.1 depicts the conceptual site layout and anticipated project phasing.  The timing of 
Phase 1, which is expected to include permanent infrastructure for the entire project site and 
related improvements to six (6) lots and a stormwater detention basin, is subject to funding 
availability and continued progress with regards to permits/approvals and the 
design/bid/award process. 
 

 
Figure E1.1 Conceptual Site Layout and Anticipated Project Phasing 



	 - 4 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

 
 
 DHHL has initiated discussions with State and County agencies to identify necessary 
and/or required infrastructure improvements, systems or services, which are summarized in 
Table E1.1. 
 

Table E1.1 Proposed Infrastructure for the Conceptual Site Layout 
 

 

Proposed Infrastructure 
Roads and Access  Proposed improvements will be consistent with the road network in this 

rural area, which has no sidewalks, curb ramps, or crosswalks. 
 The Project provides the opportunity to properly realign Waikupanaha 

Street within the County’s right of way and to provide shoulders along 
Waikupanaha Street for safer pedestrian travel. 

 Two intersections along Waikupanaha Street will be constructed and are 
expected to have low volumes of traffic. 

 Access driveways to homestead lots will be designed and constructed to 
County standards. 

Drainage and 
Erosion Control 
 

 The on-site stormwater mitigation/drainage systems will comply with 
applicable County drainage standards and requirements. 

 Some of the measures being considered include, but are not limited to, 
infiltration/sediment basins, grassed swales, and vegetated berms 
utilizing native or non-native species.  

Water System 
 

Potable Water 
 Connections and new underground lines installed along Waikupanaha 

Street and internal roadways may be necessary to extend potable water 
and fire protection service from the County’s system to DHHL’s 
parcels. 

Non-Potable Water 
 DHHL will consider a separate, non-potable water system for 

irrigation and coordinate with the State of Hawaiʻi Department of 
Agriculture with regards to extending necessary infrastructure to 
the project site from the State’s Waimānalo Irrigation System. 

 DHHL may consider additional infrastructure to the homestead lots 
that would allow for the use of a separate recycled water system for 
non-potable irrigation purposes. 

Proposed Infrastructure 
Wastewater System 
 

 Based on discussions with the Department of Health, individual 
wastewater systems will not be allowed as part of the Project because 
wastewater conveyance to the nearby municipal sewer system provides 
better treatment capability as compared to many smaller treatment 
systems that each lessee would be expected to maintain. 



	 - 5 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

 
SUMMARY FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT  

Various government agencies at the federal, state, and county level as well as other 
interested parties, community groups and associations provided input that was included in the 
Draft and Final EA.  Written comments received during the public review period for the Draft 
EA resulted in minor corrections.   

 
DHHL’s beneficiaries have provided a wide range of comments about the Project 

including concerns that are beyond the purview of the EA to address.  DHHL’s responses to 
comments and concerns are shown in Table E1.2 and appended to the Final EA.   
 

Table E1.2 Comments or Concerns and DHHL’s Responses 
 

Comment or Concern Response 
Comment or concern pertaining to project characteristics 

DHHL is proposing thirty 0.5-
acre lots on a 30-acre parcel, so 
shouldn’t that equal 60 lots?  
Why are there only 30 lots?  
What will all the land be used 
for? 

 Portions of the 30-acre parcel need to be set aside for 
streets, utilities, detention basins, and setbacks from the 
quarry slope. 

 

 A new gravity sewer system that conveys wastewater from the project site 
to existing municipal sewer system infrastructure along Hihimanu Street 
will be installed along Waikupanaha Street and internal roadways. 

 The proposed new gravity system will allow for wastewater 
treatment and disposal at the County’s Waimānalo Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP), which is north of the project site. 

 A new sewer pipeline to the Waimānalo WWTP may be needed. 

Solid Waste 
 

 Solid waste disposal will be the responsibility of each lessee.  The 
Waimanalo Refuse Convenience Center is approximately 0.5 miles 
west of the project site. 

 DHHL will encourage green waste recycling to the extent possible. 

Power and  
Communications 
 

 Electrical power will continue to be provided via overhead electrical 
lines on utility poles that generally follow the alignments of 
Waikupanaha and Hihimanu Streets. 

 New utility poles will similarly follow the alignment of proposed 
internal roads that provide access to DHHL’s parcels. 

 Overhead communications infrastructure will continue to be co-located 
on the utility poles.  

 Communication services (e.g., telephone, cable television and internet 
access) will be the responsibility of each lessee. 



	 - 6 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Comment or Concern Response 
Will DHHL be putting houses on 
the lots?  What can be built? 

 No houses will be provided by DHHL.  These vacant lots 
will be developed with connections to infrastructure. 

 Residences are permitted on subsistence agricultural lots, 
but not required; lessees who choose to have a house on 
their lot can construct what they can afford; lessee can 
choose to farm first and develop a residence as finances 
permit.   

 The structures will need to be built to county standards for 
health and safety reasons. 

Waimānalo is known as a 
dumping spot, so will the lots be 
cleared? 

 Portions of the project site suitable for award will be 
cleared and developed as lots. 

How can a farmer live off a 0.5-
acre lot?  What is the farmer 
supposed to do with the lot? 

 The intent of the subsistence agricultural lots program is 
small-scale farming for family use and perhaps selling 
excess yield at a farmers’ market; lessees are not expected 
to pursue commercial farming.  It was a policy decision to 
make the lots smaller to accommodate farming skills that 
range from no experience to very experienced. 

You can only plant in this area of 
Waimānalo above ground.  This 
land is not suitable for farming 
because of the coral.   

 DHHL is aware of alternatives to planting crops in the 
ground such as raising small animals, aquaponics, hothouse 
farming, bee keeping, etc. 

Will DHHL provide a 
community center in the area?  
How do we know if someone 
from our community will be 
awarded?  How will the 
applicants get 
screened/informed?  How will 
you convert the land to be ready 
for agricultural use? 

 No land within the project site is designated for a 
community center. 

 After awards are made, the names of awardees will be 
public information within the minutes of the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission.  The Privacy Act does not allow 
disclosure of certain information, including place of 
residence. 

 Invitations to lot selection will be sent to those on the Oahu 
Agricultural Waitlist. 

 The Project includes the development of roads and utilities, 
clearing of the lots, and the incorporation of stormwater 
runoff control. 

What will be done about the 
flooding and limited access?  
You can’t build that many 
houses with the limited access 
that is currently there. 

 Drainage improvements, including swales and detention 
basins, are proposed as a part of the Project.  Roadway 
improvements along Waikupanaha Street are also included 
as part of the Project. 



	 - 7 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Comment or Concern Response 
Do you currently have a pH level 
of the soil? 

 DHHL currently does not have the pH level of the on-site 
soils. 

How will you keep track of the 
property lines between parcels? 

 Lessees will be allowed to install perimeter fencing if 
DHHL does not include fencing during site development. 

How many existing tenants are 
there?  Are there plans to 
relocate them at the 
Department’s expense?  How 
many of them are beneficiaries? 

 There are four (4) active right-of-entry permits for portions 
of the project land.  The permits have no provisions for 
relocation by DHHL. 

 Their status as permittees has no bearing on their eligibility 
for an award.  If they are currently an applicant, and are 
high enough on the waitlist, they would be sent an 
invitation to lot selection like any others on the Oahu 
Agricultural Waitlist. 

There should be rules put in 
place regarding type/number of 
animals on the lots to ensure 
health and safety. 

 DHHL will consider including restrictions into the lease 
agreement. 

 

I hope you don’t stop this 
project/program. 

 DHHL acknowledges that there is support for the Project. 

 

How much will we need to pay 
to tie in to the utilities?  Do 
lessees have to tie in to Hawaiian 
Electric? 

 Typically, the lessee pays for utility connection costs.  
DHHL should have a better idea of the connection costs at 
the time of lot offering.  DHHL is investigating any 
requirement to connect to the electrical system (as 
compared to being completely off the grid). 

Is this project etched in stone?  
Will DHHL notify us again to let 
us know what the next step will 
be? 

 The Project is currently proceeding through the EA process 
and DHHL is evaluating the submitted comments and 
concerns.  There are some constraints on how much of the 
Project can be changed with regards to appropriated 
funding. 

Is the current funding 
appropriated funds?  Is it just for 
planning and design? 

 Yes, there are legislative funds appropriated for the Project 
that allow for the planning/design effort and a portion of 
the construction. 

  



	 - 8 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Comment or Concern Response 
Beneficiary concerns that are beyond the purview of the EA to address 

How will the screening process 
be conducted?  Is the waitlist 
order by the date of the 
application?  Do they have to be 
farmers?  What income will you 
need to qualify to be awarded an 
agricultural lot? 

 DHHL will follow the typical lease award process.   

 Applicants will be called in order of the date of application 
on the Oahu Agricultural Waitlist.  

 The intent of subsistence agricultural lots is small-scale 
farming for family use and perhaps selling excess at a 
farmers’ market.  Lessees are not expected to do 
commercial farming on their lots.  DHHL has provided 
technical assistance to agriculture lessees in the past to help 
them successfully utilize their agriculture homestead lot.  
DHHL could look at finding technical assistance for new 
agriculture lessees here. 

 There is no income requirement. 

Is the subdivision going to be run 
by an association? 

 The lessees may decide if they would like to organize a 
new association or decide to join an existing association.  
DHHL does not determine whether an association is 
organized. 

Will Lualualei Agricultural 
awardees be allowed to 
participate in the award 
selection? 

 Lots will be awarded to applicants on the waitlist and are 
not intended for the relocation of previous awards. 

 

How realistic is the current 
timeline to displace the ranches? 

 There is no definitive time line for notifying month-to-
month permits to vacate the premises.  DHHL will provide 
the permittees with notice in advance. 

Where are the pa’u riders going 
to go?  I am trying to continue 
the culture of pa’u riding.  We 
would like to find a location to 
continue this.  Can we work with 
the Department to relocate our 
ranches within Waimānalo?  A 
traditional cultural practice is an 
activity that occurred prior to 
1893.  The paniolos came in 
1803, so we are continuing that 
cultural practice and would like 
to come to an agreement on a 
place to continue this.  Why are 
horses not part of our culture?   

 DHHL has no obligation to relocate the current permittees. 

 The permits were issued with the knowledge that the lands 
would eventually be used for homesteading instead of non-
homesteading uses. 

 The Project represents a necessary transition away from the 
use of DHHL’s parcels for non-homesteading uses for the 
purpose of preparing DHHL’s parcels for long-term 
agricultural homesteading. 

 



	 - 9 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Comment or Concern Response 
Is this just discussion tonight or 
is this project set in stone?   

 The project scope is subject to change, based on comments 
from this evening’s meeting and from the Draft 
Environmental Assessment. 

How can I trace where my 
original application is? 
 

 DHHL is using recently implemented software to help track 
the applications.  Contact the DHHL Oahu District Office, 
which may be able to help assist with application inquiries 

When are we going to get a 
commissioner for the eastside of 
Oahu? 

 The timeframe to fill the open commissioner position is not 
known.  (Note: subsequent to the meeting, the position was 
filled.) 

What is the Correa Ranch being 
used for?  Can DHHL make the 
rockfall study available online?  

 The land is not being utilized at this time due to potential 
rock fall issues. 

 DHHL will investigate making the rockfall study available. 

Why can’t you develop the 
property across the street 
instead? 

 DHHL will check the status of the property in question; 
however, DHHL does not own property across the street 
from either Waikupanaha Street or Hihimanu Street. 

The last big meeting we had here 
said there were 100 acres 
available? What happened to the 
other 70 acres? Were the 100 
acres part of the old Meadow 
Gold Dairy?  That land closer to 
the valley is more fertile and 
would be better for agricultural 
use.  Is the Meadow Gold Dairy 
land owned by DHHL? 
 

 Approximately 100 acres were identified in the Waimanalo 
Regional Plan for future development, pending acquisition 
from DLNR and relocation of the Wong Farm.  Those 
properties did not include the 30 acres being developed for 
the Waikupanaha Agricultural Lots.  The land transfer from 
DLNR has been completed; the Wong Farm has not 
relocated. 

 The 100 acres discussed in the previous question was a 
portion of the former Meadow Gold Dairy.  The remainder 
is leased by DLNR to the University of Hawaii, College of 
Tropical Agriculture and Human Resources (CTAHR). 

The Department is not equipped 
to address the needs of its 
beneficiaries.  Beneficiary 
consultation should be done 
before anything begins/proceeds.  
The Oahu Island/ Regional Plan 
should be updated. 

 The Project is based on the regional plan from 2014.  
Beneficiary consultations were done to develop the plan.  
DHHL does evaluate further updates to the plan on a 
periodic basis. 

 

Why does DHHL charge only $1 
per lease to companies? 

 Rates for non-homesteading uses are based on appraisals. 

 

 
 
Environmental Impacts and Mitigation Measures  
 The anticipated impacts of the Project, which is expected to provide approximately 30 
lots for award to beneficiaries, are considered mitigatable to a level of non-significance.  Due 



	 - 10 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

to the size and scope of the Project, the impacts to the socio-economic characteristics of 
Waimānalo, public services and facilities, and recreational resources are expected to be 
insignificant.  A summary of the proposed mitigation measures included in the Final EA are 
shown in Table E1.3.   
 

Table E1.3 Proposed Mitigation Measures Discussed in the Final EA 
 

Impact Proposed Mitigation Measures to Avoid,  
Rectify, or Reduce Impact 

Air Quality  Compliance with HAR, Chapter 11-60.1, “Air Pollution 
Control” during construction is required.  The contractor will 
be responsible for the implementation of erosion and dust 
control measures as necessary for compliance with the above-
mentioned rules.  Air pollution control measures may include 
and are not limited to the use of water wagons, sprinkler 
systems, and dust fences.  
 

Geology and Soils  The project site will be properly designed with respect to 
subsurface conditions and geotechnical concerns within the 
footprint of construction. 

 State and County regulations regarding storm water runoff 
must be followed. Development-generated runoff is expected 
to be disposed of on site and not directed toward any adjacent 
properties. Graded areas affected by project actions will be 
stabilized and the Project will create more paved roadways 
within the site, which reduces the long-term potential for 
erosion and sediment transport. 

 Lessees who require a specific soil characteristic for their 
agricultural endeavors may amend the soil to achieve desired 
outcomes.  

Water Resources  A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Permit for discharges of pollutants, including stormwater 
runoff is required for the disturbance of one acre or more of 
total land area pursuant to HAR Title 11, Chapter 55, “Water 
Pollution Control” effective December 6, 2013.  The 
construction contractor will be responsible for implementing 
a storm water management plan to minimize erosion and 
sediment loss at the project site in accordance with State and 
County regulations.  Erosion control Best Management 
Practices will be used to mitigate discharges of stormwater 
runoff. 
 



	 - 11 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Impact Proposed Mitigation Measures to Avoid,  
Rectify, or Reduce Impact 

Water Resources (continued)  The Project proposes to implement several measures to 
address the quantity and quality of stormwater generated at 
the project site.  Measures include, but are not limited to, 
infiltration/sediment basins, grassed swales, injection wells, 
and the planting of native vegetation.  Proposed stormwater 
mitigation will be in compliance with State and County 
regulations.  Site infrastructure for the homestead lots such as 
the installation of proper drainage features and swales may 
ultimately improve surface runoff and reduce nonpoint source 
pollution concerns as compared to existing conditions. 
 

Solid Waste and Hazardous 
Materials 

 EnviroServices and Training Center, LLC (ETC) observed 
the presence of solid waste (e.g. rusted automotive parts, 
scrap metal, storage trailers, etc.) commonly associated with 
automotive activities within DHHL’s parcels.  ETC also 
learned through interviews that illegal dumping had occurred 
on DHHL’s land via an unauthorized sub-lease for many 
years.  The project site therefore contains areas that were 
reportedly utilized to dispose of construction and/or 
demolition debris (e.g. aggregate, roofing materials, concrete 
with rebar, etc.).   

 As a result of the Project, the recognized environmental 
conditions from past usage are expected to be ameliorated by 
appropriate actions including, but not limited to, the proper 
removal and disposal of solid waste. 
 

Natural Hazards  Clearing and grubbing for the development of the 
subdivision, and subsequent use by DHHL’s lessees is 
expected to reduce the threat from wildfires.  New utility 
infrastructure will be designed for regulatory compliance and 
is expected to be less vulnerable to the effects of sea level 
rise such as infiltration caused by tidal fluctuations that 
influence the groundwater table. 



	 - 12 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Impact Proposed Mitigation Measures to Avoid,  
Rectify, or Reduce Impact 

Flora and Faunal Resources  The use of barbed wire to top fence lines should be 
avoided since this may entangle flying bats.   

 The removal of tall trees such as ironwood (Casuarina 
equisetifolia), gunpowder tree (Trema orientalis) and 
koa haole (Leucaena leucocephala) found to be utilized 
by bats may be addressed by replanting similar-sized 
trees.   

 A survey for Hawaiian short-eared owl ground-nesting 
activity should be undertaken immediately prior to the 
start of grading in locations that are undeveloped and 
without regular human activity.   

 If a nest is discovered, no activity that could disturb 
nesting may proceed and the Department of Land and 
Natural Resources must be notified.   

 Perform the majority of construction work during 
daytime hours whereby night time work and the use of 
construction lighting that may distract or disorient flying 
seabirds is avoided.   

 Outdoor lighting should be dark sky compliant, properly 
shielded and directed towards the ground. 

 DHHL may consider agroforestry in its land use decisions 
and share options for potential agroforestry uses with lessees.  
Growing agroforestry trees together with more traditional 
agricultural crops may increase tree canopy and carbon 
sequestration, improve soil health, and reduce harmful 
agricultural practices that can degrade the watershed.  
Existing forest stewardship programs may require 
neighboring lessees to work together through an organization 
such as a homestead association to satisfy minimum lot size 
requirements (e.g., five acres) if there are no available 
programs for small lot sizes. 

 
Archaeological Resources  DHHL will continue its consultation with SHPD with 

regards to requests for determinations pertaining to the 
submitted literature review and field inspection report (Log 
No. 2019.01946).  There are no known historic properties 
within DHHL’s parcels.  Existing buildings and structures 
within DHHL’s parcels that would be affected by the Project 
appear to be less than 50 years old.   
 



	 - 13 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Impact Proposed Mitigation Measures to Avoid,  
Rectify, or Reduce Impact 

Archaeological Resources 
(continued) 

 A basalt and mortar water conveyance feature at the 
intersection of Hihimanu and Waikupanaha Streets is 
potentially older than 50 years old, has been modified by 
more recent polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe, and is expected 
to remain in use.  DHHL has requested concurrence from 
SHPD that a limited archaeological inventory survey (AIS) 
to document one likely archaeological historic property (i.e., 
the basalt and mortar water conveyance feature) is the 
appropriate action with regards to historic preservation 
review under HRS §6E-8 and HAR §13-275. 

 DHHL shall require its contractor to immediately halt 
construction activities and notify SHPD in Kapolei in the 
event any unanticipated sites or remains such as bone or 
charcoal deposits, human burials, rock or coral alignments, 
and pavings or walls are encountered during the various 
phases of construction. 
 

Cultural Practices and 
Resources 

 One of DHHL’s current permittees utilizes the natural 
resources they planted on-site in their cultural practices.  
Reconsideration of the Project has been requested in writing 
and conveyed directly to DHHL’s Administration by several 
interested parties who want the Cook Ranch and Pires 
Ranch to continue for the foreseeable future.  These ranches 
reportedly contribute to the perpetuation of Hawaiian 
traditions including but not limited to pā’ū riding.  The 
scarcity of available land for horsemanship practice with lei, 
workshops and lei making (i.e., pastoral lots consisting of an 
acre or more) was a stated concern. 

 The current permittees may relocate or replant the cultivated 
natural resources that they value prior to the commencement 
of site preparation activities associated with the Project, 
which would help to minimize or avoid the loss of these 
resources to them. Any remaining cultivated natural 
resources on the premises are expected to be cleared due to 
site preparation activities, and the loss of these resources 
may be offset as a result of the cultivation practices of 
beneficiaries who are awarded homestead lots. 

 DHHL appreciates the efforts by current permittees to 
preserve and promulgate cultural practices; however, the 
cessation of current activities on the premises including 
cultural practices is expected to be offset by the 
establishment of long-term homesteading by beneficiaries, 
which is a core mission for DHHL. 

 



	 - 14 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Impact Proposed Mitigation Measures to Avoid,  
Rectify, or Reduce Impact 

Visual Resources  Vegetated areas within the project site will be necessarily 
cleared for site preparation and the creation of roadways 
and utility infrastructure; however, subsistence agriculture 
is expected to be consistent with the visual character of the 
surrounding area, which is dominated by residential and 
agricultural land uses. 

 The incorporation of agroforestry practices by beneficiaries 
in their subsistence agricultural endeavors has the potential 
to reintroduce trees and other plants that are appropriate for 
the Waimānalo area. 
 

Noise  The provisions of HAR Title 11, Chapter 46, “Community 
Noise Control” require a noise permit if the noise level from 
construction activity is expected to exceed allowable levels 
stated in the Chapter 11-46 rules.  It shall be the contractor’s 
responsibility to minimize noise by properly maintaining 
noise mufflers and other noise-attenuating equipment and to 
maintain noise levels within regulatory limits.  

 If construction activities occur outside of the allowable 
timeframes designated for the noise permit (i.e., nighttime, 
Sunday, holiday) and exceed allowable noise levels, a noise 
variance must be obtained prior to commencement of 
construction activities, as required.  The construction 
contractor will obtain the appropriate permit or approvals 
(e.g., Notice of Intent to Construct, Community Noise 
Permit, or Noise Variance).  DHHL will ensure that the 
contractor complies with all permit conditions.  No night 
time construction work is anticipated. 
 

Site Access, Circulation and 
Traffic 

 A traffic management plan that addresses short-term impacts 
during construction will be submitted to DTS and DPP for 
review. DHHL’s contractor will be required to implement 
Best Management Practice controls at the project site to 
prevent dirt and debris on County roadways. The contractor 
will obtain a street usage permit from DTS for construction-
related work (e.g., project parking, transporting equipment, 
etc.) that may require the temporary closure of any traffic 
lane on a County street.   

 Potential disruptions on local streets may be further 
minimized by transporting construction materials and 
equipment during off-peak traffic hours (8:30 a.m. to 3:30 
p.m.).   



	 - 15 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Impact Proposed Mitigation Measures to Avoid,  
Rectify, or Reduce Impact 

Utilities Water 
 The civil drawings will be submitted to the Board of Water 

Supply and Honolulu Fire Department for review and 
approval to ensure that County standards and on-site fire 
protection requirements are met. 

 DHHL will consider a separate, non-potable water system 
for irrigation and coordinate with the Department of 
Agriculture with regards to extending necessary 
infrastructure to the project site from the State’s Waimānalo 
Irrigation System. 

 Timing considerations may affect DHHL’s decision to 
include additional recycled water infrastructure as part of the 
Project.  Treatment upgrades (filtration and disinfection) at 
the Waimānalo WWTP facility must be completed to allow 
the production of R-1 recycled water.  An agreement 
between the County and DHHL would also be required to 
commit both agencies to long-term R-1 recycled water 
usage. 

 
Wastewater 
 A new sewer connection for the Project is subject to review 

and approval by the County. 
 DHHL has consulted with the Department of Health and will 

not allow the use of individual wastewater systems by 
lessees. 
 

Drainage 
 The site drainage plan must comply with applicable County 

drainage standards and requirements. 
 The Project does not intend to utilize new injection wells for 

storm water runoff. 
 

Power and Communications  Proposed construction activities have the potential to disrupt 
power, cable television, and other communication systems 
but these effects are expected to be short-term and 
temporary.  The Waikupanaha Street improvements may 
necessitate the relocation of utility poles with overhead lines, 
which is expected to require further coordination with the 
service providers. 

 Service to DHHL’s parcels will be coordinated with 
respective service providers since some services may be 
upgraded to accommodate the Project.   
 

 



	 - 16 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

 
SIGNIFICANCE CRITERIA EVALUATION 

Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Section 11-200-12.2 establishes procedures for 
determining if an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) should be prepared for a project, or 
if a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) is warranted. HAR Section 11-200-12 lists 13 
criteria to be used in making the determination. These 13 criteria were evaluated and are 
discussed below.  None of the criteria were found to meet the threshold for significance.  As 
such, planning staff recommend a Finding of No Significant Impact determination for the 
Project. 
 
1. Involves an irrevocable commitment to loss or destruction of any natural or cultural 

resource;  
 
Discussion: The Project is not expected to endanger any natural or cultural resources. DHHL’s 
lessees will be informed of the potential for native plants and animals, primarily birds, to inhabit 
and pass through the property. The proper protocol for managing important species will be 
developed with lessees. DHHL will ensure that its contractor stops work and contacts SHPD 
immediately if any unanticipated buried archaeological or cultural resources are encountered 
during construction. 
 
2. Curtails the range of beneficial uses of the environment;  
 
Discussion: No beneficial uses of the environment will be curtailed as a result of the Project, 
which represents DHHL’s commitment to enable native Hawaiians on the Oʻahu Island 
Agricultural Waitlist to return to their lands. Completion of the Project ensures the beneficial use 
of DHHL-owned land that is in a strategic location for agricultural endeavors including 
subsistence agriculture. 
 
3. Conflicts with the state's long-term environmental policies or goals and guidelines as 

expressed in chapter 344, HRS, and any revisions thereof and amendments thereto, 
court decisions, or executive orders;  

 
Discussion: The Project is not in conflict with the long-term environmental policies, goals, and 
guidelines of the State of Hawaii as discussed in Section 5.1 above. 
 
4. Substantially affects the economic or social welfare of the community or State;  
 
Discussion: The Project does not substantially or negatively affect the economic or social 
welfare and cultural practices of the community or State. Short-term jobs for people in design 
and construction are expected to be created as a result of the Project. Completion of the 
subsistence agriculture homestead represents the commitment by DHHL to provide opportunities 
for native Hawaiian beneficiaries to supplement their incomes with agricultural products grown 
on their lots and to possibly reside. 
 
5. Substantially affects public health;   
 



	 - 17 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

Discussion: Public health will not be adversely affected during the various construction phases 
of the Project. Short-term and temporary effects such as surface runoff, fugitive dust, noise, 
intermittent traffic, solid waste, and potential disruptions to utility services are expected to cease 
upon project completion. The implementation of construction BMPs will minimize temporary 
impacts. Completion of the Project would provide onsite infrastructure that is associated with the 
subsistence agriculture homestead. 
 
6. Involves substantial secondary impacts, such as population changes or effects on public 

facilities;   
 
Discussion: No secondary impacts such as population shifts are anticipated from the completion 
of the subsistence agriculture homestead, which is expected to provide no more than 30 lots for 
award to beneficiaries. Utility demands for potable water, wastewater disposal, solid waste 
disposal and power will be coordinated with the State, City or service provider and are expected 
to be insignificant due to the size and scope of the Project. 
 
7. Involves a substantial degradation of environmental quality; 
 
Discussion: The Project is not expected to degrade environmental quality. Environmental 
impacts that may occur during the various phases of construction will be mitigated through the 
implementation of construction BMPs, as appropriate. Appropriate mitigation measures have 
been identified so they may be implemented. 
 
8. Is individually limited but cumulatively has considerable effect upon the environment 

or involves a commitment for larger actions; 
 
Discussion: The Project represents a long-term commitment by DHHL to enable native 
Hawaiians on the Oʻahu Island Agricultural Waitlist to engage in subsistence agriculture on their 
lands. The subsistence agriculture homestead in Waimānalo does not commit DHHL or others to 
additional related actions. 
 
9. Substantially affects a rare, threatened, or endangered species, or its habitat; 
 
Discussion: No species listed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service or in the Endangered 
Species Act are expected to be significantly impacted by the Project. The project site does not 
contain habitat for proposed, candidate, or listed threatened or endangered species. DHHL will 
inform its lessees about the proper protocol for managing important species, primarily birds, that 
may inhabit and pass through the property. 
 
10. Detrimentally affects air or water quality or ambient noise levels; 
 
Discussion: Short-term impacts to air quality, water quality or ambient noise levels may occur 
during construction. No State or Federal air quality or water quality standards should be violated 
during or after construction. Environmental impacts will be mitigated through proper 
construction techniques and compliance with applicable DOH rules and regulations. The Project 
is not expected to negatively impact ambient air quality and background noise levels. 



	 - 18 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

 
11. Affects or is likely to suffer damage by being located in an environmentally sensitive 

area such as a flood plain, tsunami zone, beach, erosion-prone area, geologically 
hazardous land, estuary, fresh water, or coastal waters; 

 
Discussion: The project site is not situated within an environmentally sensitive area and is not 
anticipated to affect such areas. Permanent site infrastructure installed as part of the Project will 
be designed to comply with applicable regulatory standards that consider the health and safety of 
residents but are appropriate for a rural area. Drainage improvements will be designed to 
minimize the potential for localized flooding. 
 
12. Substantially affects scenic vistas and view planes identified in county or state plans or 

studies; or,   
 
Discussion: The Project will not obstruct or affect scenic vistas and view planes in the project 
area. Landscaping by DHHL’s lessees may further reduce the visual impact of the subsistence 
agriculture homestead in Waimānalo. 
 
13. Requires substantial energy consumption.  
 
Discussion: The new agricultural activities and homes represent an insignificant increase in 
energy consumption since the Project will create no more than 30 lots for award to native 
Hawaiian beneficiaries. 
 
NEXT STEPS 

Should the HHC approve the Final EA and declare a FONSI for the Project in 
accordance with Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 343 and HAR 11-200.1, the following 
actions will need to be implemented to continue to move this project to the award process.  
 
1. Submit Approved Final EA/FONSI to Office of Environmental Quality for publication in 

The Environmental Notice. The EA legal challenge period ends 30 days after publication. 
 

2. Coordinate conceptual layout with various State (and County) agencies, including, but 
not limited to:  
o State Department of Transportation – traffic mitigation and access points to the 

Project site.  
o State Historic Preservation Division – ensure compliance with historic preservation 

laws. 
o State Department of Health - wastewater disposal and environmental health 

compliance. 
o State Department of Agriculture – non-potable water system 
 

3. Complete Project Design and Contract Documents. 
 

4. Issue Invitation for Bids and Select Contractor. 
 



	 - 19 – 
 ITEM NO. E-1 

5. The implementation of Phase I is expected to begin in 2020.  It will include permanent 
infrastructure for the entire project site and the development of six (6) homestead lots for 
award.  The number of lots, timing, and size of each subsequent phase of the Project will 
depend upon engineering master planning, permits and approvals, and construction financing 
for infrastructure development.  DHHL anticipates awarding all leases over the next decade, 
assuming the availability of sufficient funding for design and construction.  Available land 
and the timing of funding resources affect the homesteading objectives that DHHL is striving 
to achieve. 

 
 
 



Final Environmental Assessment for the 

Proposed Waikupanaha Agricultural Lots  

Project in Waimānalo Ahupua‘a,  

Koʻolaupoko District, Oʻahu Island, Hawaiʻi 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared For: 

State of Hawaiʻi 

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 

 

Prepared By: 

 
 

 

March 2020 

  























































STATE OF HAWAII 

 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

 

March 16 & 17, 2020 

 

TO:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

 

FROM: Andrew Choy, Acting Planning Office Manager 

   

SUBJECT: G-2 For Information Only – Community Benefits Agreements Lessons Learned 

    

RELEVANT MATERIAL WILL BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM NO. G-2 
























































































































	March 16 & 17 Agenda
	C ITEMS
	D ITEMS
	E ITEMS
	G ITEMS
	H ITEMS
	J ITEMS



